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e INTERPRETER: Is Sawada a Lieutenant General or full general?
1}
E: PROLECUTUR: Lieutenant General.
A My memory of the timec is not very clear. However, the fact that

General Sawada was therc is clear in my memery. At the tie of
the execution. :

DEFENEE: I withdraw tiet question and answer.

PROCECUTOR: May it please the Commission, this answer is not with-
i drawn. That is on the rccord ana co.nsel hes no authority to withdraw
’ the answer from the record,

DEFENSE: Will jou riad back the question and answer for me?

EPORTER: "Question, then how do you wnow that General Sawada was
in command of the 13th Army at this time?" And the answer "y meiory
of the time is not very clear. However, the facst that General sawada
was there is clear in my memory. At thc¢ time of the executiun,

* Q vwas General Shimomura in commana of the 13th Army at the time of
the execution?

| A I do not know.
Q was Caesar Luiz dos Remedios the interpreter for the questions
asked you by Majcr Dwyer?
A Yes, “y"

Q Was he once an inmate in the liiangwan Prison?

A He was in the Shanghai Branch of the -- he was in the Branch office
~- the Shanghai Branch office of the legzl division of the peniten-
tiary. :

Q Could General Shimomura have been in command of the 13th Army at
the time cf the trial of the Doolittle flicrs?

| PROGECUTOR : Objected to as being immaterial., what General Shim-
. omura could have been or could have done is immaterial. If he is askcd
was he, or was he not, we have no objection.

.
‘ COLONEL 1C REYNOID:L: Obgection sustained,
2 Q lias General Shimomura in command of the 13th Aruny at thce time of ’ %
’ |
b the trial? ~
. A I do not know about it at that tine.
Q Do you know if General Sawada was in co.mand of the 13th Army at
the time of the trial? %
A I do not remember, 1
Q Then do ycu know who was in command of the 13th Arigy at the time | |
of the trial? y
A Because of the fact that my dates are nct clear chronologically, i
I do not know who the coumanding gencral was.
Q l:as General Shimomura ever in command of the 13th Army? =
A Yes. >

F
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DEFENSE: No further questions.

PROSECUTOR: Does the Commission have any questions?
QUESTI.NS BY THE CUURT

COLONEL MURPHY:
Q I have, to clcar up the status of Remedios when he was in thc Branch

office of the penitentiary, otherwise known as the Kiangwan Prison.
Was he a prisoner there?
A Yes.

Q Do you know the nsme, rank ani branch of the prosecutor who signed
~ the writs of cexecution and ilmpriscnment?

INTERPRETER; Imprisonment?

COLONEL MURPHY: Yes, execution and imprisonment.
A I do not know.

COLONEL WISE:
Q Was General Sawada present at the eitecution?

A I do not remember.

COLONEL BERRY: I would like to ask defense counsel, when you
phrased the question to the present witness, sonmething to the effect,
Was General Sawada in command of the 13th Army at this time? and the
witness answered, "He was in caumand at this time", my question to you
is, what time are you referring to?

DEFENSE: (Lt Col Bodine) From the previous question I was reier-
ring to the time of the execution. If it please the Comuission, I would
like to point out at that time what I had in mind and what the witness
had in mind are two different things.

: COLONEL BERRY: It seems to e that it should -appear on the record
whether the witness knows the question and the time you referred to in

making his answer.

DEFENSE: It may be that tlie maticr will be ciearcd up if the re-
porter goes back and reads the testimony before this particular question,

PROSECUTOR: I might suggest ithal to clear it up the dcfense counsel
ask the witness a question tc tie him down to 2 particular date.

JEFENSE: He later answered that, I believe. I asked him later and
he said no, but to that particular question he specifically stated that
General Sawada was Commanding General of the 13th Army at this time. 1
think it will be unnecessary to pursue the¢ matter any furthcr.

COLONEL GAMBER:
Q - While you were on duty as a guard at Kiangwan Branch Prison, did
you ever act as a personal guard to any of the fliers? .

NO- 1

A
Q Was the Bridge House jail under the 13th Army?
A T do not know of the others.,

COLONEL GAMBER: What does he mean by that?
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INTERPRETER: I do not know. I interpret only what is asked. I do
- not add words.

PROSECUTOR: Yes, of course.

DEFENSE: I do not think the question is made clear.

COLONEL GAMBER: I understood yvestcrday vihen he was questioned hc
said he had been there threec times.,

DEFENSE: The Japanesc counsel said the inverpreter had interpreted
it to him that way.

COLONEL GAMBrR; You mean the intorpreter used those words?

INTERPRETER: When we transiate we cennot add anything to oxplain
the words. We give only a literal translation and we do not change it

unless it is a grammatical error and we make it cleer but we do not add
words,

PROSECUTOEE Was the Honkew Gendarmerie Frison under the Jjurisdic-
tion of the 13th Army?
A I do not know.

PROSECUTOR: May the witness be excused if therc are no further
questions?

COLONEL MC REYNOLDS: There being no further .questions, the witness
is excused.

(Whereupon the witness withdrew from the court room.)

PROSECUTOR: I might suggest at this ti.w that we would like to
translate the statement read into the record yesterday as tne next order

of business, if the Commission would like to recess first. It is nearly
ten thirty.

COLONEL MC REYNOLDS: The Comnission will recess for fifteen minutes,

(Whereupon the Commission al 1028 hours recessed until 1043 hours,
at which time all members cf ith. Coamission, the accused, counsel for
prosecution and defense, the intcrpreting staff and official reporter
resumed their seats in the court room.))

COLONEL MC REYNCLDS: The Commission is in session,

PROSECUTOR: At this tine we would likc to have the interpreters
translate the statement of Hite and DeShazer to the accused. Thils was
read into the record yesterday, Prosecdtion's Exhibit No. 22,

(¥hereupon the interpreter, Mr. Krantz, translated Prosccution's
Exhibit No. 22 for the accuscd.)

PROSECUTOR: The prosecution will call as its nexlt witness Sgt.
Iasmu Yoneda.
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YONEDA ISAMU

called as a witness on behalf of the Prosccution, being flrst duly
affirmed, was examined and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

(Sgt Morozumi, interpreting.)

Q
A

o =
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(By Maj Dwyer) Thz prosecution will ask a couple of qualifying
questions as to the witness! affirmation. Do you have a religion?
1:-do,

What is it?
Buddhism.

Do you know the cdirfference between trutia and untruth?
I do,

In speaking before this Commission vill you be bound by your con-
science and your religion to tell the tfhuh and nothiig but the
truth?

I qQ.

(Whercupon the witness was given the oath of affirmation.)

State your name, rank and organization in the vapanese Army.,
Army Legal Section, Sergeant Major, Isamu Yoneda, 13th Army Prison.

Is that your present station?
it ds,

Was that your station in aboul September 19422 x
At that time it was the Shanghai Prison, &nanghai Branch of the

China Expediticnery Forces rriscn

phen did you firss cuare t¢ “hLanghai in 19427
Latter part of July,

Did there come a Zim» of Kiurgtsn hilitary Prison vhen you met the
Doolittle fliewrs?
There was, :

What date?
It was whcn 1 ceme Lo &ncpvha; Iroi Nenking, around the latter part
of July 1942, I d2 rol wemaiiber the date.

Were you present at a ccurt-martial when these fliers were tried
by the court?

-No -

Were you present at a time when certain of these fliers were execut-
ed?
I was at the execution ground.

- ;}r"hat date ?

I do not remember the exact date but + think it was in the middle
part of October, 1942.

How many fliers were executed?
Three.
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Do you remember their names?
No,

Describe to the Commission what happened at the execution grounds,
The three prisoners werc placed in front of crosscs and their arms
bound. A hood was placed over thom and the firing squad took
position about thirty meters away from them and fired.,

Do you know Capteain Tatsuta?
I do.

Do you sec him in the court room?
Yes sir.

Point him out,
(Pointing.)

PROSECUTOR: Let the rccord show the witneso points to Ceptain

Tatsuta.

Q
A
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h.as he at the execution?
Yes.

was he in command of the exccution? °
He was the commanding officcr of the execcution.

Was Captain Tatsuta the governor at the prison?
He was the Shanpghai Branch chief of the China Lxpcditionary Forccs
Prison.,

At Kiangwan?
Yes.

Did Ceptain Tatsuta givc the cowupand to fire av the cxecutlon?
I do not clearly remcmber but L don t think he did.

was Captain lwako there?
He was,

Captain Okada?
I do not rcmember.

Did anybody-ask the fliers any guestions before they vierc exccuted?
Captain Tatsuta was asking and speaking to them,

“hat werc the questions?
I wes too far distant away to understand.

You saw him telking to tne {liecrs?
1 .did,

Do you remcmber seeing me before?
I think that whcn I was first investigated that you interrogated me,

That was at the vapanese Military Hospital in Kiangwan, wasn't it?
Yes., |

I show you a statement -- signcd statement, and ask you whosec
signature thst is?
The signature is mine,
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You signed thet in front of me, dlun t you?
Yes.

> o0

Therc was an interprcter, wasn't the
He weas.

-

£
==

o

Were you asked this question and d4i1d ycu give thnis answer through
the interprever: Quecsvion "Yas he irn eccamand of the executicn?
Answer "I think it vas CZaptain Tatruta,n '

A I stated that I was not sure.

TR N

Q I &gk you ggail. vweiz ;o aseed thet quostivn «nd did you give
& that answer?
k' JA I didl
L Q ere you asked this guestion ana did yoa give this answer: Quest-
H ion "He was governor of the prison%! [nswer hYus
‘ A I said that hc wes the branch chicl,
f Q tiere vou askcd this next aquestion and did you-give this ansvicr:
! Question "Did he give the comuwand te fire%" ALnsver "I coannot be'
8 sure but I think it was him,"
| A I steted that at that timc I was not sure who it was.
i ) I ask you again, werc you &asked the question and did you give that
. answer when you talked to me?
' h 1 did.
L
. 5] Lnd Just before j;ou signed ithe statement did you.mhku this state- 2
| ment: "The above stotement hes been recad to me in Japenese by
l interpreter Caesar Iumiz dos Remedios ¢nd I understend it fully and
. it is a true and corrcct statcucnc, T arfiru the statementt and
i then jour signature?
) A I was.
!
PROSECUTOR: You m~y cross-cxamin:,
2 CROSS EX A3 T10
i) (By Mr. Kumashiro) What wes your renk 2t the time of the ChLCdt10n9
LA I was frmy Prison Gu:.rd,

PROSECUTOR: Excuse me, wes thit "wk t wis your ronk?" lr. Kumashiro
could you speck up just o little bit more plocsc.

Q Whet was the rank of Tatsutn ot the time of the exccution? /)

A Hc w=s irmy Prison Chief. g

Q Is it the civilian rank or the military ronk? »

& o Civilicn reank, g

¥

Q Lt the time of the execution how mony orders were given to the fir- g

ing squad? - v

i I think that thcre was only onc order to the firing squcd. jﬁ

N Do you remember vhot was thot one order? *ﬁ
A I ~m not surc but 1 think I hcard the order "Firen,

\

I csik you thet is the independent order or one of the orders in
one series of order?

O
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INTERPRETER: I do not understznd your question clearly.

-e

(Captain Hehm then interpreted the question.)

L It vas the singlc order of o serics of orders,
: Q Wies 1t the final order of the series, of the order to "shot!?
3 A Yes, .
Q I would like to repeat the -- I would like to sk again whcether the
order to shoot is the lest order of the serics of these orders?
A Yes, it was.
Q How far were jou av bhe eteculion ground from the man who issued
the order?
A I wos standing about fifteen mcters to the left of the person who
is.;ued thc¢ orders.
| Q Could you hear the wholc orders in thot series of orders?
‘ A I was nble to heer nll orders in thet series of orders,
Q Can you sny to this Commission that the -- Can you say to the

. Commission that ezch order in this series of 01dcr59
| A First it was "jttention", "Fice to the targel", "Prepare", ond
"Fire", "From squatting position, fire", \

D ~nything more?
A I heard nothing other than thet.

G I would like to ask you the order of "shoot!" is the l.st ordurO
A The ordcr to fire w s the lost,

( I would like to &sk you agoin, «fter the firing squad shot the firc,
vere they not given any ovher ordcers?
3 After the firing squad fired, thoy werc given an order to ccase fire,

G Anything more?
L I don't think th:t there wercv any more thon that.

|
1
II
|
|

Q Do you think all thosc orders werc from the samc pcrson?
: I The samc¢ person issued thosc orders.
| Q Could you hear all those orders distinctly?
A I was == I heard everything that I have stated to now, 3
Q How many chicf of the guard were thcre at the time of the execution -
in thc Kiangwan Prison? . 3
i Lt that time therc was onc, ot
0 Wes Tatsuta the chief of the guard at the time in the Kiangwen Prison? -
I He was, -
Q Was he the only chief of the guard ot the time of ithe excecution in 1 |
the Kiangwon Prison? i |
A  Therc was onc other chief of the guards. _;é
Q %who was the Chi:f of the Prison in Nanking at the time of the execu- i?
tiOﬂ? A\

I Ooka Takijiro wns the priscn chief in Nenking.

\
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Do you‘ramcmber whether the medical doctor treated the wounds
prior to place thc corpse of the threc flicrs in the coifin?
I do.

Don't you remenber the flowcr wreaths was brought to the exccutiow

Q
ground?
INTEKPRETER: w«hot do you mean, flower leaves?
D-FENSE: Flower wrcaths.

A I dO.

Q Was it the usual custom ot the timc of the execution of the vapanesc?

it Yes.

Q Do you remember whcther the speciol treatacnt was given @t the tiue
of the execution of thc Doolittle flicrs?

i 1 do,

3 Vhat was it.? _

’ ne received ordurs from superior OIfivceroe bo ~lford thesc flicrs
more than to the vapancse prisovncrs; te pernit them to axoreisc
&8 long vs they wished without limiting their period znd we graanted
them more vegetebles in their doily dict then we did to the ¢apan-
cSee Thise vegetables werc reiscd by the prison itsclf,

Q fnything morc? |

A /ind thcy verc allowed to bathe twice or thrce times 2 weck. They
vere also given two or threc morce blankets thun the othur prison-
ers.

Q How many to thce Japenese prisoncrs in win--in sumacr?

i In the sumucr it we.s three, :

W How many blenkets did you give to the Doolittlc fliers in swamer?

i I reaember tnet it was four or five blonkets ~t that time,
DEF:NSE: No more cucstions.
PROSECUTOR: Docs the Conmission wish to ask this witness cny

qucstions®

CCLUNEL GiMEER:

Q
A

QUESTL1UNS BY THE COULT

iere you ever on duty as & guard dircetly over any of the flicrs
vhile thcy werc in prison?

I scrved ¢s & gencrel guerd rether than guerding the fliers in
par‘t iCU:I.f G 4

COLONEL MC REYNCLDL: No furthcer questions by the Comudssiorn.
FROSECUTQR: May the witness be cxcuscd.
COLONEL MC REYNOLDE: The witncss is excuscd,

(Whereupon the witness withdrew from the court room,)
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PROSECUTOR: The prosccution will call as its next witnuss Sgl.
Tomoichl Yoncya.

YONEYA TOLOICHI
(sgt Morozumi interpreting)
celled s 2 witness on beholf of the prosccution, being first duly offirm-
ed, wos cxamined and testified as folloviss |

DIRLCT EXiMINATION

Q (By kejor Dwycr) The prosecution will ask the witness o few pre-
liminery questions to quelify his ~ffirmation. Do you hove &
religion?

1A I do.

) what is it?
A Shinto - Buddhist scct.

< Do you knowi the difference betwecn truth cnd untruth?
i I do. ;
|
Q In speaking to the Commission will you be bound by your conscience |
~nd your religion to tcll the truti rnd nothing but the truth? o
A I do, -
“A

(vhereupon the witness was given the oath of affirmetion.,)

Q State vour name, rank and present organization and station, X
L Lrmy Judicial vergeant lMejor, Tomoichi Yoncya.

Q You ~rc¢ presently stationcd in Kiangwan with the 13th Aragy?

J A Yes,

Q ind Mayema and Yonede oare there with you, cren't they? A
IR They arc. |

Q) In 1942 were yvou stationcd at Kiongwan Militery Prison, Shanghal? 1
i There is no Kiengwen Prison in Shanghail.

Q %here were you stationed in [ugust, 19427 '
I I was with the 13th [rigy. , =

Q Wiere you at the prison vhere the Doolittle fliers werc brought?
4L I was,
Q When did you first sec the Doolittle flicrs?
L It was some time in 194%. I do not rcmember the date or the wonth.
Q Did you remember attending o court-mertial of the Doolittle fliers?
L I do not rcmember.
Q Were you present ot First Shanghei Cemetery in October 1942 when
. three of thesc flicrs were cxecuted? :
lf‘. I WS,
U Whzt were your duties at the executicn?
4L 1 went there on preparatory detail and crected crosscs with new

Jumber.
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Did Captain Taotsutn order you to do thet?
Yes.,

When the three flicrs aerrived at the ccuetery were you alrendy
there?
Because I have come thure on prcparatory detail, I was there,

kas Captain Tatsute in charge of the exocution party?

INTERPRETER: Repeat the cucstion pleose,

(hhureupon the reporter rcad the question back to the laterpreter, )
He was there and ho transmitted tie ordors be reecived rrom Qoka.,

Did you help tie any flicrs to the cross?
I did.

ias Ooke. present?
He vas not,

who did you tie to the Cross,
I hrve forgotten his n:imc.

Describe to the Commission the exccution of the flicrs. whot- hep-
pened?

I was on preparatory detail end I went ang erc¢eted crosses mode of
new timber, after which 1 brought the prisoncrs by vchicle, ,fter
the prisoners were brouzht to the cemctery I bowed to the coffin
after vwhich the prisoners were ticd to the crosscs with new cloth,
There vierc two riflemcn assigned to each wan, One primary riflcinan
ond the other secondary, ..s to the person giving the oracr, 1 do
not clearly remunber.

Which officer gove tic sign~l to fire the shot?
The person who save the order to fire I think was cither the
officer or the non-com who wrs an charge of the Ifiring squcd,

Did you ever see me before?
I hzve,

You gave me a statement et Japanesu.militany hospaitol, througn an
interprctoer?
I have,

I show you that statoment with & signature ¢t the bottou of it and
&sk you whose signaturc th-t 1S,
The top signature is minc,

That is the signaturc above the two snglish signaturcs?
Yes.

You signed that in front of me?
Yes.,

Now in that statement werc you cskcd this question and did you give
this answer: Question "ijhich officer gave the signcl to fire the
shot?" fnswer "I think it wes Captain Tetsuta becouse he wes the
Governor of the Shenghei Military Prison, a brench of Nenking, "
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IR I was mistaken,At thet time Captein Tatsuta wes & civilien (na &
civilian can never issue an order to military pcrsonncl,

PROSLECUTOR: I ask the answer be stricken from the record. I
merely asked the question did 1 ask that qucstion cnd did he give thet
answer. I move that his answer be stricken from the record.

DEFENSE: If it pleasc the court, this witness is mercly giving a
pretty responsive snswer to the question, He cen moke on answer "ycus!
or "no" or hc con make an explenation. He geve the cxplcnation which
implics the cnswer given &t thaet time wos a mistoke.

COLONEL MC REZYNOLDS: The answer will be stricken from the rccord,
Q) I ask you again, werc you csked that question &nd did you give

that answer?
iy I did not.

Q Do you know Licutcnont Hayame, defense counsul in this case?
1 I do
al .

Q He is olso in tho Leg:-l Department, Jop: ncse 13th .ray, isn't he?
s Ycs,

Q Do you know Captain Shimnde of the same departament?
A I do.

) They were present whcn you gave me this stoterent weren't they?
;L Yes'

Q .nd they hcard the trenslation of wmr. Reumedias read to you, aidn't
they?

L. Yes.

- Hove you tolked to Lt. Hogyemn cbout this statement since you gave
it to me? 1

I I have not spoken to him concerning the statement,

Q You are in the samc office with him, arcn't you?

I No.

Q Did you lic to me then, when you geve me the statement?

) I did not say a lie., It could very probably be thot I misunderstood
or wes misunderstood,

Q You didn't object to the translation 2t the time it was read to
you, did you?
lls Yes.

Q You objected to the translation when it was read to you?
A NOe

DEFENSE: If it please the Commission, there is some misunderstond-
ing on the interpretation. there.

PROGECUTOR: I think if thcre is some question of interpretation,
the interprcters can get together and settle it.

(Whereupon the interpreters consulted with each othur but before
-~ decision was reached, the prosecution again spoke up.)
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PROUECUTOR: I withdraw the question,

Q Did you obJject to the translation when it was rcad to you?
ik I did not object 2t thot tine,.

Gl Did Lieutenant Hiyomo object?

i I do not know,
) Tou werc there weren't you?
.I.. I was,

PROSECUTOR: liey it please thoe Comulsaioa, we shell need this wit-
ness after lunch. It is five after tvelve. Do you wisn to tcke & reccss?

COLONEL MC REYNOLDS:; The Comuission will adgourn until two o!clock
this afternoon, |

(Whereupon, the Commission at 1205 hours, =djcurncd uatil 1400
hours, 22 March 1946,)
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LFTERNOON SESSION

« oo Pursuant to adjournment, the Ccmmission reconvened at 1400 hours
on 22 March 1946 ...

COLONEL MC REYNQLDS: The Commissi n ie in session.

MLJOR DWYER: Let the record show the members of the Commissicn,
prosecutirn and defense covnsel, accusecd, interpreters and reperter are
orasent in the court after recess and cthe witness is remindesd he 1is still
under oath,

TOMOICHI YCWREIA

testifying at the clesz of the previoua sessiocn, resumed the stand, was
reminded he is still under ocath, was examined and testified (through T/Sgt
John Morozumi) as frllrws:

CROSS EX/MIN'TION

0 (By Mr., Komoshira) /At tha time ~f the exscution of the Drolittle fliars

were you a guard of the Kiangwan Prison?
A Yes, .

Q Did the Kiangwan Prison belong t~ the 13th Army at th2 time of the
execution of the Doolittls fliers? |

L. It is not the Shanghai Priscn. It is th:Shanghei Branch, China
Expeditionary Foree Prison.

Vhere was the Shanghei Expediticnary frmyis prisen?
Kiengwan. It is the Shanghai Branch of the China Expaditionary Force
Priscn,

— D

A Where was the main prison?
I Nanking.

Do you knov: whe led the firing squad at the timn ~f the execution?
Either an officer or a non~-com. I am not sure »f it,

-0

Q How many mombers wvere there in this firing squad?
L There were two persons per man making a total of six,

0 Did you hear the orders to firs at the time of the exccution?
A I did not hear the order "firao",

O ¥here ware yru at the time of the execution?
I Between th3s cresses and the firing squad to the side,

Q How far was 1t between you and the firing squad?
A asbout 15 meters,

Q Do you think thet the nrder to firs is spoken independently according

to thz military regulations? ‘
4 I didn't hear ths nrder "fire", however, they were glven an order to
load, teo about face, to forward march and halt,

Q I'd like tn ask you that the present answor was from what you have
geen actuallv the firing squad had done?
A I saw the actions of the firing squad and stated it.

Q Aftar they fired the shot vhat kind of action did the firing squad taken?
it I think that the order was about face, forward march, halt and extract

cartridge.
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0 Don't you remember who had ordered these series of orders at the time
of firing?
A I do not remember. Since the orders are impertant to such a point

I don't think anyone other then an arny officer or a non-com could
have given such crders.

MAJOR DWYER: May it please the Comrission, prnsecution moves tc strike
that answer., The witness may be permitted tn cay vnat he saw and what he
cbserved but when he says "I don'’t think it cruld have happened this way"
because of scme circumstance, that is not a responsive answer and has no pro-
bative value., Ve suggest the witness describs what he saw., If he didn't

see anything let him so state.

CAFTAIN FELL0O'S: If the Cormmission please, there is no doubt but what
it does have probative value.

COLONEL MC REYNOLDS: The answer given was not an answer to the question.
It will be stricken from the record.

Q Can a civilian order to military officers, military personnel?
A They can not.

@ Please explain to this Commission the treatment of the prisoners in
the Kiangwan Priscn concerniny tn the food.
A The food ratinns are set down by the prison, However, we raised part

of our ovn vegetables, The main dish can not be altered, however, the
side dishes could be and was supplemented with greens raised in our own

yard,

Q Were the fliers and the Japanese prisoners treated equally in the
Kiangwan Prison?

A There is no Kiangwan Prison, It is the Shanghai Branch.

0 I mean the prison where the fliers wvere,

A I understand.

0 How was it?

A Of course the same.

"ere they not given any special treatment?
They were treated similar to the treatment the Japanese prisoners were

getting, "'e did not see them get any better treatment.

I'd 1ike to ask you whe cleaned the toilets nf the Japanese prisoners?
Japanese inmates.

Tho would clean the tollets of the fliers?
That also by Japanese,

I would like to kneow the reasnn why there was the différence between the
cleaning of the Japanese prisoners tollet and the toilet of the fliers?

There were no difference,

I understand that you have just said that all the toiletis were cleaned

by the Japanese priscners,
Yes, Japenese did clean cut all of the tollets.

Did you not rsceive any special order from the chief of the guard to
give special consideration to the fliers while they were in the confine-

ment there?
I have,
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what kind of order did you receive?
Fecause our language 1s different and beceuse they arc of a different

nationality, to treat them a little ersier,
hat kind of special treatment were actually given to the fliers?

They were glven consideration In that they wers given vegetables as
side dishes tecaise of the fact that hread almne will not sustaln

them.

i'as thal order given from Tatsuta?
Yes, because we are guards,

ME. ERUASHIR®: No further guestions,
1T COL HENTEEY: Any questicns by the Commission?

COLONEL 1% REYNNITS: There appear to be none. The witness 1s excused,

(1itness excused)

MAJOK ITYER: Frosecution calls sas its next witness, Sergeant Minezaki.

YUTLKA MINESZAKI

was callzd z& & Titness on bshalf ~f the Frosecutien.

MAJOR D"YZR: The prosecutirn will ask two or three preliminary ques-

tirns tn qualify the affirmation of this witncss.

:r"lD bt@ ‘;’"19

2

Do you have a rellgien?
Yes,

Yhet is it?
It is Buddhism.

Do you know truth from untruth?
Yes,

In speeking before this Commission will yru be bound by your conscience
and religion tr tell the truth and nething but the truth?

Yes.

(hereupon the mitness was affirmed, was examined and testified

(through S/Bgt Ketsuki Arita) as follows:

A

D

-2

.- D

DIRECT EXAMINLTION

(By Mejor Dwyer, State your neme, rank and present organization and

statirn,
Sergeant lMejor liinezakl, Yutaka ~f the Japansse Judicial Branch,

Tocation of the unit at Kiangwan Headquarters of the 13th Army.

Japanese army?
Yes.

“here were you stationed in fiugust 19427
Shanghai, :

Tlere you stationed at the Shanghai Branch Milltery Friscn at that time?

INTERPRETER: T~ the previnus guestion, "I was attached to the Supreme
Headquarters,"
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viere you stationed et Shanghai Branch Military Prison in August 19427
That wus in Sortember,

".a8 1t September that you first ceme there?
Yes.,

“hat was yorr rank at the time?
Suard.

Wies there & time 1In September 1942 when you met the Lonolittle fliers
at that grison?
Yes,

How many did vou meoat?
I remember a8 having been five of tham,

Bn you rememher thelr names?
I do not remember,

Do you remember a time in October 1942 when you attended the execution
of thrac cf theso Doolittle fliers?
Yes.

“het raere your dutlas at the cxecution?
Security.

Did you help tie thz men to the crnsscs?
I did not.

“ho was in charge of the executicn party?
I dc not rememher,

"as 1t Captain Tatsuta?
Yes.,

.28 he commander of the prison at that time?
Yos, He was the chizf of the Shanghai Branch of the army prison.

ies he przsent at the axscution?
Yes,

Dn you see Captain Tatsuta in tne courtrocm?
Yes.,

Point him out to the Commission,
MaJOR D.YWR: L2t the rscord shov the witness ponints tc Captain Tatsuta,

Descrihz tn the Commissinn vhat you saw at the cemctery when the
exacution took place.

First I gnt there, Tatsutz was speaking to throe persons, Just those
that wers assigned duties teok them over te tho crnss and hegan prepara-
tions, After the execution, the hrdizs were all internsd in a coffin
and vers arranged in a row of three,

How were the three fliers excecuted?
It was by firing saquad.

By firing souad?
Th&t iS' I‘ight.

“'as 1t the three fliers that Captain Tatsuta was talking tn?

Yes,

183

. W e

# a
- - - R b - #
» - . » 4 ¥ . X, - ;;h L i .
o L l-q.':a..'. -'-h g -~ Tﬂ*ﬂ.‘i!LH_‘L o I 0N g e, G 'S L




7105 2 3/22 ™™

. D g PO

= D

= O

B> O D O

O o .0

h"-
F—-F

r> 0

o PO O D

Do you know what he sald or vhat they sald?
I do not rememhor.

Where vere you standing vhen all this took place?
Facing the cross on the right hand side at appreximately 20 maters.

Aftsr the ‘men were executed by the firing squad what happermed to their

hodiecs?
I do not rememher.

They were taken out of the cemetery?
They went towerd the cremetorium,

You are in the legal office of the Japanese 13th army now?
Yes.,

"AJOR D YER: You may cross examinec.
CROSS EXAMINATION

(By Mr. umashiro) You have just said that Tatsuta was in command of
the exccution. What do you m2an hy "in command"?

Captain Tatsuta was the chief guard and we haing guards ve received
orders from him and the guards maintained sccurity. T"e act undar the

orders of the chief of guards.

Do2s it mean that Tatsuta was in command of those subordinates?
Just the guards.

Don't you know vho was the responsible officer In the execution?
I do not know. .

Hov many firing squads wcre there at the execution grounds?
dne saguad.

How many members were thers?
Which is that, of the squad?

Yes.
hApproximately 15 men.

Vere thzse memhers under the command of Tatsuta?
No.

Do you remember vwho issued the order to fire?
I do not remcmber.

Where were vou at the time of the execution actually ta%en place?
I vas facing the crosses to the right 20 meters.

Could vou hear the voice of the order to shoot?
Yes,

Vas it the only voice of the order which you heard?
Y28,

Did vou see what the firing squad conducted?
Y=s.

What was 1t?
In this squed the actual shooters or flrers were three, the rest were

security members or guards.
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Did +he fire squad shoot the fire standing?
From a squatting position, kneeling.

Lid you not hear the order to shoot?
Yes,

Did you hear any other orders heslides to shoot?
I do not recmember,

Po you know from whom the order to shoot camc?
I do not remember,

Vhat vas the rank of Tatsuta at the time of the execution?
Crief of guards, -

Was he a prcfessional military man?
He was a civilian attached to the army.

Could a civilian issue an order to a professional military man?
He can not.

Viere the fire squad military men?
Yos, .

MR. KUMLSHIRO: No furthsr questions.

EX.MINATION BY THE CO*MISSION

(Ry Colonel Gamber): To vhat army did the firing squad belong?
I do net remember,

You stated that Tatsuta was in chargz of the execution., Dild you so

state?
He wes the commander of the guards only,

Did you sec Ceptain Tatsuta give eny instructions to the commander of

the firing squad?
I do not remembzr,

COLONEL MC REYNOL™S: Therc appear to he no morc questions; the

witness is excused.

(witness excused.)

LT CCL HENDREN: .t this time ve will put Major LCwyer on the stand

pertaining to the pravious vitnecss.

MAJCR ROBZRT T. DU:YER

called as & vitness on hehalf of thz prosecution, having been first duly
svorn, was éxamined and testifled as follows:

DIRECT EXAJMIN..TION

(By Lt Col Hendren) Major Dwyer, did you assist in the investigation
and examination of the witresses in this case?
I did sir.

Ms jor Dwyer, please state your neme, grade and organization.
Major Robert T. Dwyer, Headquarters Lrmy ..ir Forces, ..ssistant Lir
Judge advocate, Lir Forces, China Theater,

Mejor Dwysr, in your investigation of the case, did you taks a statement
from Sergeant Minezakil?
I did’ gir.
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#m vhet date wes that statement taken?
That statemont was taken on 20 Novenber 1945.

I'11) you state to the Commission thu circunsi~nces under which the

statement was taken?

In the company of Yr. Remedios, an int=1preter employed by the U.S.
wrmy, I vas ta¥en to thc Japanese milltary internmsnt camp on the out-
skirts of Shanghei, Iwu, Hayama, delense counsel in this case, and a

legal officer in lhe Jupanese 13th .omy, togathar with a Captain Shimada

of the same office, took me to the cema, T had e shorthand reporter
with me. Lt. Havama vent into the ccmp barracks and brought out
Minezaki. I took Minezeki's statencut in the presence of hoth Capteln

Shimada end Lt. deyama,

%as that stetement taken dovn in shorthend by the reporter?
Yes, sir. I would ask the guestica end the intarpreter would inter-
pret that into Japanesc. He would cbiula the answer and give it back

in English.

Then vas thet statzment typed and prescnt:d to Sergeant Minezekl for

his signature?
Yos, sir.

#as the statement Tead bhack to Minezaki in Japancse when he signed 1it?
Yes, sir, and in the prosence of Lt. dayana aud Captain Shimada,

Do you have with you 2 signed copy of the statement given by Sergeant

Minezakl?
Yes, sir, I have several executed all in tle criginel and I have one

with me.

Major Ivyer, I ask you to examino the copy yov have and I vill ask you
if the following quastions were asked und the following answers glven.
%es this question asked, "Do you ramembsr a vime in October 1942 when
threa of thosec fliers =warz execated?" and this answer given, "Yes,"
Thet question vas askad and that answer was pliven,

I will =sk you if this question vas askad end this answver given: "iere

you present at the execution? L. Yes,"
That quostion was asked and that anewer was given.

T will ask vou if this question vas asked and this ansver given:
Wiho was in charge of the exacution party? .. Captain Tatsuta."
That quostion vas asked and that answer was given.

I will ask you if this qusstion vas asked and this answer glven: Q.
Was he commender of the prison? A, Yes." ‘
That question was asked and thet answer was given,

Now Major Dwyer, I will ask you if you took a similar staotement from

Sergeant Yoneya.
I did.

Was thet statem2nt tsoken under similar circumstences as that vou have
related ralstive to Sergeant Minszaki?

Yes, sir, this was taoken st a Japanese milltary hospital on the out-
skirts of Shanghai in the prosence of Lt. Hayama and Captain Shimada
vho took me into the hospital, The same interpreter was present also.

LT COL BODINE: If it please ths Commission, I object to the method of

quastioning the witness. I'd like to know the resson, A4ire they trying to
impeach their own witness? If they hove any further questions to ask, the

witness are here,
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LT COL HENDREN: Ve ara showing te the Commission the inconsistent

answers glvsen by the witness on the stand rad that giver at the time he vas
Interrogated ~t the firsc instance. It is a forn of impeachment of these
Japanese witnesses who appeared todav whe bzlong 5o the same army as these
gentlomen here on trial. I think this is wroper for the record and it is
ovidence that has prohative value before tiais Conmission.

LT COL BCNINE: May it pleesse the Comission, there was no answers given

today that wara diff:srent from the auswers the prosezution has been asking
the vitness,

LT COL HENDEEN: I helieva thers w3, if the Commission remembers the

testimony. I think the answers werc soncvhet different.

A

45

1s

e

COLONEL MC EEXYNOLDS: Objection overruled, Proceed,

Major Dvyar, did Sergeant Yoneya sign his statement after it had been

interproted to him in Japarese?
NHe did.

I will ask you if this question was asked and this answer given: "0,
Was Cnptain Tatsuta in charge of the party? L. Yo2s."
That question vas asked snd thet ansver was given.

I will nsk you if this ousstion was asked and this answer given: "C,
Whish officer pave tha signal to fire the shot? .4, I think it vas
Captain Tatsuta hecause he was the governor of the Shanghai Military

Prison, & branch of Nanking." |
Yes, sir, that ques%ion was asked and th~t answar was given,

I yi1l ask you, Mejor Dwyar, if you tcok a similar statement from

Sergeent Yonede,
I did, sir,

Ties this statement taken under similer circumstances as that teken
relative to the statemant taken from Sergeant Minezaki?

Yos, sir, this was also taken on the 20th of November, 1945 at the
Japanese military hospital in the presence of the same persons I have
nlready testified to.

Did Sergeant Yoneda sign his statement after 1t was read to him in
Japaneso?
He did.

Jo you have a2 signed corv of his stectement bafore you?
Yes, sir.

I will ask you, Maior Dvycr, if this question wes nsked and this
answer given: "Q., Do you know Captein Tatsuta? i, Yas,"
Y>s, sir, thet question was askad and that answer was given.

I will ask you if this quastion vas ssked and this answer givén: "o,

"as he in command of the exeeution? A, I think it wes Captain Tatsuta,"

That question wos asked and that enswer ras given,

I will ask you if this question ¥es asked and this aneswer was glven:
"0, He was governor of the prison? A, Yes.,"
Yos, sir, that question was asked and that answer vwas glven.

I will ssk you if this question was asked and this answer was givens
"0, Did he give the commond to fire? L4, I can not be sure, but I

think 1t vwas him,"
Yes, sir, that question vas asked and that snswer was given,
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LT COL HENDREN: You may cross exemine.
CROSS EXAMIN..TION

(By Coptein Fellows) Mnjor Dryer, who was the intorpreoter on all
these statements?
Mr. Remedios,

On ail of these statemaents?
Yes, sir.

In whose office was IMr. Romedios employod?
I employed him in my offlce.

Your jnterrogation was handled throug Mr. Remedlos?
That is oorrect.

Who read the statcments to thase witnesszs?
Mr. Remedios.

Lid you ever have znother interproter prasent to check Mr. Remodios'

statemants before thaese witnesses?
No, I had no other official interprecter. Lt. H2yama, vho understands

English, was th3re, howover,

Is Lt., Hayama efficient on the speaking of the English langunge?
Oh, he does a fair joh spaaking. I wouldn't say he wag an expert.

Is he sufficiently proficiasnt to he an interpreter?
No, I wouldn't say he ig gced enough to b2 an interprater.

Then is 1t not true that all threz statements that you have tastified
to are nctually what Mr. Remcdios states those witncssss said?
Yes, I regard them as satisfrctory heczuss Lt. Hayama and Captain

Shimada used him himsalf whon they had him as a prisoner.

CAFTAIN FELLCYS: If the court pleamse, I move the answer be stricken

28 not responsive to the quzstion.

IT COL HENDREN: I doubt if the last part of the answer vas responsive,

if thz court please, The first port of the answer wns responsive,

COLONEL MC REYNOLDS: Strike that vnortion out, plsase.

M= jor Duyer, hov did you locate thase witnesses?

The naras of these vitnesses were originally given me from an
invectipation made hy the first Americon Yar Crimes team that chme

in herz, so I vent to the 13th irmy Headqusrters out here at Kiangwan
and met Lt., Hayama nand Captain Shimade and they produced the mon

themselvas,
Mc.jor, would you state that Lt. Hayema as heing a2 help to you in

investig~ting this cnse? |
Yes, I would soy he was, If I remember, he gave instructions to 2ach

men vhom I qu2stioned, told them to tell the truth.
CLPT.LIN FELLO/S: No further quastions.
LT COL HENDREN: Does the Commission heve anv questions?

COLCNEL MC REYNOL™S: There appear to be no guestions by the Commlsslion.

The witness may be excuscd,

(¥itn2ss excused,)
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LT COL HENDREN: If 1t please the Commission, the next offer ve have
1s a trenscript exhibit, being the statement of a Jaepanos2 named Major Hata
and it is rathar lergvhy,. Is it the desirs of tha Commission to recess now
and start on this stateme.t nfter the recess, or aces the Commission desire
for me to start on the statement?

COLONEL NC REYN'LUS: The Commissicy will rocess for approxinately
15 minutes, :

(Vhereupon the Commission reccssod at 1515 hours, )
COLONEL MC REYNCLDS: 'The Commission is in session,
LT COL HENDREN: Le% the resord show vie membars of the Commission,

counsel for prosecution and dzfonse, the acsoeend, tho intarpraters ond
reporter are prosent in ccurt at the ternianticn of recess,

LT COL., JCHN H, HYNDREN JR.

| recalled &s u witness on hshalf of the progocusion, having been reminded
he was still uhder cath, vwas examined and tescifiec as follows:

DIRECT EX.IMIN.LTION

0 (By l=jor “wyer) Colonel Hordren, in connection with the Investigetion

of this cass, did you hnve occasion to leara ¢f a lMajor Hata Itsuro?

0 “hat was his connection with the Doolittle case?
L. He was the prosecutor st 4he court martinl held 28 Aupust 19/2. '

Has your investigation disclosed whether this man is living or dead
at this time,

Q
| A I have been advised that Me Jor Hota is dead,
Q

State briefly to the Commission the facts upon which vou basec thot

\ statemernt,

{ - A L request had been mede somstime last fall, I belinve it was in Novemher,

) to the imerican frmy in Japan to apprehend liajor Heta, I vas in

| Japan ths latter part of 1945, last part of Decenber;, end I was |
{ advised hy the lepal branch of “he Supreme 41iied Headguarters thers

| that Mejor Hats vas sick in n hospitel, I went to the hospital where ‘
) he vas supposed to be und found that he had left a fer days before

| that for his home, I thzn requecsted to the Jmericen ermy that he be

, apprehsnded at his home and held for transportation tc Shanghai 1in L
' connection with this cnse, Sometime lztar in January 1946 I was

| advised by the Lmarican srmy in Tokyo thnt Maior Heta had died., I then

requested the particulars relative to his dzath end received a communica-

tion deted 6 February 1946 from tho Genepal Headquarters, Supreme N .
Commander for the f1lied Fovers in Tokyo a certificate of Hrjor Hata's

death nnd a sovpy of the report of the medienl offiger who examinsd the

body on 23 Jaruary 1946 2nd three photographs of the body., The body was '

examined by an Amecican medieal officnr on 21 January 1946 and was iden-
tified to him as the bodv of Major Hata.

Q Prior to Major Hatn'!s denth, can you state to the Commission whether a
| statemont was taken from tho major?
A Quite somstime prior %o his death, Major Hate sent a statement written
| in Jepanese to the legal section of the Supreme :11ied Headguarters
in Tokyo and that statement wns translated by the Allied Interpraters

Service in Tokyo ana the English translatic: wns forwerded %o me through
military channels here 1a chanzhal 2a Dausmbheps of 1545,
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Q Did =n offielal army translation of that statement accompany th2 state-
ment 1tself?

i Yos, it vas officially translaced, forwmardad to the lepnl section on
28 November 19.5.

Q Do you have tant iranslation in you-~ possession?

4 Yos, &nd I clsu huve In my posesession the oripinal statement from
vhich it was trens’ated which 1s written in Japanesce, and thet state-
ment I picked uvp 1u Tckyo in the early part of January 1946,

MLJCR DUWYER: Plenze ma-k this dncl icat a3 Prosacution's Transerint
Exhirit No., 25 for Idancific-tion.

(Nocument so marksc.;

MiLJEGR DUYER: Copies of this transintinr arve becn given the defense
counsel sometime agn. I now offer Prose-utrou ¢ Transcriprt Exhibit Ne, 25
for Identification in 3videnc2 as Pros-cutaion 3 Treanseript Exhibit No, 25,

CLPT.LIN FELLWS: May I aesk n fow questions of the vitness concarning
the exhihit?

CROASS EX\IINLTION

0 (By'Captﬂin Fellows) Colonel Hendran, have you examinad tho exhibit
which has bheen offered in =vidence?

4::; YGS, I hava.
G "as 1t sworn to?
4 I don't kclisve 1t wes, It is a voluatary statcment medo by Major Hata,

Q- "as 1t signod in the presence of any rerson that you know of?
i I don't know that of my pnrsonal knovled:-c,

@.PTLIN FELLO S: No further cusstions.

If the Gommission please, e havc some statemeats taken somerhat

| gimilarly, for which reason, in crder to make & »ecord which to puide our-
| selves, we'd like to intornnse an ohjection to th2 idmissibility of this
N statoment so it will set this standard.

( COLONEL MC RUWYNOLOS: TVhet is your objzction to the admissibhility?

LPTLIN FELLOUS: The nhjaction is to put in  the record at this time
whether or not a statoment tekon not undar oath and not sipgnad in the
‘ presence of any knéwn rarson is admissihla. It i heing mede for our ruidance
| as we proceed.

MWJOR DYYER: May it ple=nse tha Commissinn, ve have takan great pains to
show the facts and circumstrnecs surrounding the taking of 2ach statement -
| which we have offered in evidence, e hava rut on the witness stand both
Crlonel Hendren and myself to show these eircéumstances., DIach axhihit that
is offored must stand on its ovn meritsy This partlicular oxhihit is =
statement voluntarlly written by Major Hata of hie own volition snd Major
Hata 1s dead. TVie can not set any standard for sll exhibits\ These peculiar
circumstences are reculier to this erhibit aloney at loast so far =8 ve knov,
go that whatever the ruling of the court moy be on the admissihility of this
exhihit, i1t can not be said to ea2t a etandard, Each must stend or f=11 on
its ovn merits. y

LT COL BERRY: Moy I irquire as to whothir the-e Is enything in the

gstatement which indicatoes wny tl: auifor wrote -2 prceazzd the dbatement. I
42 am afraid I am not clear as to vhet Ly cid witl tha statement after he wrote
F it., Did he send it volumtariiy te the hsadguarters in Tokyo of tha Allied i

.—F
A |
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Powers or just what éid he do with the statement.

MAJCR LV.YER: Iet the witness answar,

THE WITNESS: This statomont wog mailad from a Japaneso hospitel in
Tokyo bty Major Hata to Cclonel Carrenter, Chiof of the Leral Ssction
of the Supreme Allied Headquartors in Tokyo after liajor Hata had heen
informed that hz ras to be apprehended in this cuiee, I picked ur the
original Jarancse copy from Colonel Cerpenter!s nffice in Tokyo.

COLONEL MURPHY: I mav have missad thie in the testimony, btut did Colonel

Carpenter authenticete the sigmature, déid ho meke any affidavit thot he knew
this was the sifnature of Mejor Hata, or is there sny authantication of
the signatura at all?

A

The oririnal stotement is vritten ontirnly in Jaranzse. I don't believe
Colonel Carpenter can rasd Jenan2se, hat I beliove the exhibit vrili

‘'show 1ts authonticity at the tims it is read to the Commission that it

did come from the Mejor boecause it contains infermation which he would
1ikely have 1n his posscssion.

COLONEL [4C REYNOLDS: The objcction is overruled. The statement vill

he read into =vidence and tha Commission will give the rrorzr welfht to
the voluntery statoment.

(Prosecution's Trarserirt @xhibit No, 25
for Idantification vas received in cvi-
dence. )

(Yitness oxcused, )

(Whereupon Colonel Hendren read Prosecution's Transcrint Exhibit

No, 25, which is attachad hereto, )
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ALLIED TRsNSLATOR LND INTERERETER SECTION
UNITED STLTLS ARLY FORCES, PACIFIC

NOTE: <+ranslation requested by Legal Section,

FarTICULAKS AXLATING TO TuE rUNISHRENT OF T4E LRERICAN
ALAEN «Jd0 RGWILVED Pl Jarabaoo dO0MELANL Ol 18 4FPXIL 1942

by dhla ; Itsuro ( )

On 26 August 1942, I was ordercd to be thc prosecutor in the
trial in of Second Lieutenant HORULakU (TIN Fresumably dALLMARK)
ana seven others at tae 13 army ilitary Tribuncl in the compound
of the 13 army deadquarters stationed in SANGHAI, CHIN.. The
following 1s a detailed account of the noture of my auties at the
time of the trial, and ny version of my part in this affair. I
solemnly swear that tnls account is absolutely true, sl help ne
rod !

In arder to understand fully the circunstamces of the punish-
uient, it is necessary to present a general outline of the organiza-
tion and rfunctions of the military tribunal, and its trial
procedurec.

(s Orgenization cnd funetlon of the Military tribunal.

The military tribunsl is tane army's legel organ for punishing
any individual, other than Japanese nationals, witnin a military
zone of operation of thce Japankse army, who commits any act con-
strued to be 2 wartime offense, or who commits any act inimical to
tne safety of the Japsnese «rmy, or who commits any act which
hinders military opcrations.

wfter the outbreuk of the CidIlus inecident, the Japunese Army
e¢sStablished militery laws affecting 211 non-JdJzpancse peoples in
tne various zones of operations, aond established a military tri-
punal in each army nendquerters to punish any individual violating
these laws. The militery law differs from the crimincl and army
penal laws in thet it is not established with the authorization of
the Imperisl Liet. It is purcly an army order imposed by authority
of tile respective army hecadquarters for tne purpose of insuring
tne scfety of the army, and for sccuring the activities of mili-
tary operations.

Since the military law 1s bascd essentinlly on the require-
ments of military operations, tus military tribuncl which tries
cll violators of tais law Talls into the scme category. On this
point, the real nature of tne military tribunzal dirffers from that
0f tne court martial, wnich is based on the army court-martial
law. dowever, aside from a few exceptions, the orgunization and
procedure of the military tribunal arc, os a rule, patterned aftaor
army court-martinl Ilsw. I will hecrein explain it by using, as an
cxample, the military regulations and the military trial regula-
tions under tine military law of the Japancse Expeditiondry army
in China, which was establisiied by authority of the Supreme Head-
quarters of thc Japnncse Expeditiomary «rmy in China. Thosc
established in territories other then Chinn differ only slightly.

iseccording to these, the military law of the Expeditionary
army in China applics to pecple other than Japcnese nationals with-
in the zone of military opgeroticn of thc said Expeditionary iLrmy
(«rt. 1). .oy person who engnges in conspiracies, or espionage
activities against the Japanese «wrny, or who willfully and knowing-
ly cndangers thic snfety of the Jopanese army, or who commits angy
act which Iinterferces with military activities is liable to miii-
tary punishment («rt.2)., Such punishment is alvidcd into five
?lnsse?: dcath, imprisonment, banishiient, fine cnd confiscation
wI'be5)s
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fhe arganiz.ion and functions of thc &itary tribunal arc
prescribed in the military trial regulation of the Expeditionary
“rny ln China. They prescribe that the militaery tribunal is under
tae Jjurisdiction of tac Lxpcaitiomry «rmy in China, or a subor-
uinate¢ army thercof (irt.2), and stinpulate that the presiding
of ficcr shall be ths supreme corue ndcr of the Expeditionmary .rmy
or the comm.nding general of tiae subordinate arny thereof (urt.5).

The general military tribuncl consists of the presiding
O01flccr, the judges, the law menber, the clerk of court, and the
scrgeant-at-arms., Furtner, the legal scetion is cstablished to
csslst the comuwending gencroal who is thc prcsiding of ficer, and
Lhe cnief of the legal secction directly nssists thc commnnd ing
gencrel., In addition, the chief of staff =nd his subordinatc
staff ofTicers assist thc commanding gceneral, insofar as reguirc-
l.ents oI military operztions are involved.

« Summory military tribunal, on the other hond, 1is merely
“li tgeney appointed. to pass judgrient on speeifie ct3es, and is
limitcd in its jurisdiction. Tiae tribunal ln this casc¢ is
composca of three judges, two of whom are combatant of ficers, and
tae third :. law membecr.

‘‘hen these requirements arc fulfillcd, thc presiding of ficer
tiKes charge (.rt.6). Tae trial convenes with the judges, the
2roscecutor ond the elerk of court in attendance (Lrt.7). dOWever,
in trying foreigners otner taan chinese, tune military tribunal
mnust obtain sanction of tae Suprane commander of tac Expeditionary

“«rmy 1ln China (.rt.8). mTac ranking officer among the judges is
the presiding ofificer,

«8 & general rule, thc military tribunal tolerates no inter-
fercnce in conducting its trial, dowcver, as has becn mentioned
Freviously, inasmuca as tae cilitary tribunnl is sct up by
authority of tae comeiending geaeral of thae <y in accordance
with the requircuecnts of military operations and placed under his
Jurisdiction rather than being grantcd absolutc Judiecial power,
it is operated by thc virtuec of the brerogtive of the supreme
comiand. Hence, it 1s probeble taat, within the bounds of the

requirements of military operations, & certoin degrce of latitude
is permitted in the trinl procecdings,

On the otner hund, the prosccutor cnn excrelise no initintive
in dischnrging his duties, and is merely a tool discharging the

duties of his office in complete compliance with the orders of
his superiors,

The forcgoing is a gensral out line of the organization and
function of a nilitary tribunal, Pernsps additional aata may be

presemtcd verbally. For refecrence purposes, tnere are astachsd
Acrcto supplementary inclosures bresenting the rules and regula-
tions of military law of the Expeauitionary srmy in China and the

rules und regulations for trial proccaure of the salad wriy. (See
inclosures 1 and 2).

:L) B I'I'*I;Lall-l.‘& g Y T..'CI:. ﬁj I\... WL L .E'ZOC ELURE N

«8 8 rulc the military police investigate 211 violations of
the military law. ,.aen sufricient evidence confirming the viola-
tion is assembled, ¢ rcport of the investigation, together with
all documentury and mterial ¢cvidence is trausnitted to tine pre-
slding officer of the mliliSary tribunal. ‘Yhen this report is
reccived, tae prosecutor cof tiae military tribunal , upon receipt
Of oraers fror: the presiding of ficer, carefully cxamines all the
documents, cte,, ona if flccessary, submits his opinion to the
prcsiding officer as to the cdvisability of prosccuting the case,
*his the presiding Of ficer takes urder consideration by consulting
the chlef of the legnl Section, the cnief of staff and his subor-

dimte staff officers: and after arriving ot a deelsion, issues
als instructions to tne prosecuto
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On the b&sg of this order, the pmsc‘or mok es appropriate
Gisposition of Che casc. In &4 cuce waere the prosccutor draws
indictnent, a2 sumunry tribunal passes judgment. In such a case,
the prosccutor is present at thce trisl, and corrics out his
auties in complliance with tac orders of his superiors.

In this couanecction, tne prosccutor conducts the trial on the
basis of the defenaant's testiwony. If the trizl establishes the
guilt of tihe defendant, the term of imprisonment 1is based on the
recoLricndotion Qf the prosecutor. However, in linposing a death
scntcnece, tae oraer of the presidéing officer is required.

et . faani[‘I L:U.Lun'll:& 4Lla.|..m.q .L_..LV; .L10 '.I.*f.i.l.".l L LH\IS;J:L'.&{,:P h.ETEb OLT Il\
T415 INCIDENT.

l. uyn or about 16 ..pril 1942, I wcs on duty with tae legal
secbionl of the vembr:l wrny ctOSunris. Shortly tnerezfter I was
transferrea to tac legcl scction of the 13 army as a stoaffmenber,
tuou resortea to auty at owklGilul, 13 lay 1942, Until 1 Merch 1943.
wien oracers for my transfer to HIGOSHIL.. ( ) cone tarough,

I wis on duty for cpproxiuctely 10 months 2t Sannghuai,

2. b the Tokyo hilitary rolicc dendquorters, Licutcnent
20aUiohU ang the scven others were uxuwincd by First Licutenant
wabi,, Kiyoju ( ) Military Police, ~nd others. Toward the
ena of July 1942, wojor OG:.T.. Tzuwi ( ), of the Shanghai
hilitary rolicc nendquarters, came to tac 13 Lrmy Hq with the
aocur:gnt s of the investigetion in ais posscssion. He explained
in aeteil the full poerticulars of thc case to Colonel ITO, Okinobu
( )y, wio is the chief of tinc 13 .rwy Legil Scction and the
prosecutor of the wpilitaory tribunsl, and others, 2nd demanded
tint tae ulrnun be triecd by tae military tribunol, .

It was at this point tant I first breame awnre that this case
was being investigated by tnc iilitary Folicc, nnd thet Liecutensnt
d0nUks.hU™ and fis uen were in the custody of the shonghni Military
Folice uacadquarters, Colonel Ito called ~ttention to the fact
tatt tac findings of tane investigation were limited to the testi-
monles ol the defeundants, una ald not reveal such information as
dor.oges una losses susboined in tine boubing und strafing. de gave !
instructions 1or tae preparation of o document covering nll
dopecets of toe case, tnd for its aisputenh to tac wilitory tribunal,
nccoraingly héjor OGaT.. nnu his colletgues inde inuuiries at the |
Tokyo kilitary Police Jcadyuarters as to the extent of the dana ges
aud logses, tuc rindings of whieca were -pgpemied to tae investigo-
tion regort,

fhe cuse w3 referred bo the 13 «rwy lilitary Trioanal garly
in qugust 19,2, 48 prosceutor for the 13 .wrmy kilitary Tribunal,
Uolonsgl Ito curefully cxmmined thc pupers relating to the cuse,
rollowipg wiica ne sun.ittcd his recoanendations to Lieutenant
Generial SaWals | ), ColdunndGing Generul of the 13 army,
lijor Gencrol iarndawi ( ), chief of staff, nnd others.
Upon araers frow the commtnting gensrnl of the 13 ary, cpproved
by tiec suprune conwnznder of tas Expeai tionry ALrmiy in China, .
Lieuntenant nOxUl.XU* wnd tanc scven werc inGicted, and cowcitted
to trial by the 13 wroy hdlitary Tribunnl. To foeilitote dis-
position of tnc case, in complinnce wlta crders from the Grand
Impericl acedquartcrs wnd the winisvry of war, the "Military Law
coucerning Punishment of Fnemy JLiruen™ wis cstablished by the
subreie comrander of tne Wipcditiomsry ..ovriy in China., Lieutenont
enersl Sandaba, Colonel 1tu, €6 6l, couriitted Lieutenant HORUMLKU™
cna his men to trinl by tne military tribunal for violotion of
tnis regulaetion. For refcorence purposes, this low is appended
iisreto. (Sce Supe.3)

Jo Lieubtennnt Colonel N.KnJO, Toyoms | ), chief judge,
rirst Licutensnt .iIT3U, Yusdl ( ), and Second Licutenant
Oii.Di., syuhel ( 5; Judges, were aesignated judges of the

tri.l. On 26 wugust 1942, before the court convened, Colonel Ito
acsighmitceu we prosceutor of tae cpse, and spzeifically instructed
i€ tOo delaind toe dotth penalty, Tor reusons eloborated in the
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following p&ragxghs, it can be secn why I!ld not .care to
beeone involvee in this affair: but inaswuch as it was the order

of Ly superior office, Colonel Ito, I could not refuse. SO it
was, Lore or less, uncer auress thet I .rosccuted the ocase.

4. The trizl wns over in about an nour. Lieutenant HOr Ul iU
ci0 nis men were specifically chorged witn violation of article 2,
Sections 1 and 2, of the Lilitary Laow Concerning Punishment of
Lnoy «iroen, but in one wRy or nnpotihcr they were 0ll found guilty
and scitcnced to dentih under tnc provisions of urticle 3 of the

1w,

5., Beiore the trial, the coumandlng general of the 13 Lroy
ad roceived specific instructions froo the Grand Impericl Head-
cuarters, tarough the Lxpeditionary «imy in Chinc Hdeadguarters,
"to relay ncws of the verdict to tiae Chief of Staff irediately,
in orter that the Grand Iwperinl Hendaquarters might make of ficial
announcenicnt of the nunishuent imeted out to the arerican alrmen".
ccoraingly, tne moment the trinl was ended, the coruwirnaing
gencrel of tac 13 wrny relayed tac verdiet to tne Grend Inperial
deadquarters through the Expcditiomary arwmy in chinn Head-
YUALTEDS .

.S n conscoucnec, on 10 October 1942, 13 usrmy Headqurters
reccived orders fron the Chief of Staff of the Grand Imperial
dendauarters, vis deadquarters of the Expedltionary wnriy in
Chinn, to the effect that the weath sentence of Lieutenant
HORUL WU*, decond Lieutenant FUARO™ (T.N,Presumobly Fi.RROW),
sergc nt Sufatsu* (T.N. rresuucbly SPa.T4) were upasld, ana tae
dote of exccution sct at 15 October 1942; while the scntence of
the remzining five werc conmuted to life irprisonment with the
stipulation that slnce these five hod been declared was crininels,
they were to be accordeG trentrient secparate from thot gl ven the
usuzl prisoners of war.

. On the basis of the foregoing oruer, on 15 October,
Colonel Ito, upon receipt of an order from Licutenant General

SHINOLUR. | ) who succec@ed Licutencant Geéenernl Samda, issued
ingtructions for tne executlion of Licutenant H0AUanU* ana the
other two. TuTSUDa, ijliro | ), warden of the Expedi-

tiomry wricy Punitentiary at Shongiacl, assumed the role of execu-
tioner. .t sublic CUenetery No, 1, locabcd north of Yen-Chiu-bhail

( ), Cuunghsic ( ) aistrict, Shaaghai, the condew.ned

Lol werg exeeuted by ¢ firing sguad, hsaded by First Licutenant
Tashinma ( ), cowranding officcr of tiae 13 «wriy deadquarters
Guards, with onc non-couwmissiored officer and six enlisted mcn unde
Alu. roo five w00 were scatemced O lifc inprisonc.cnt were re-
Loved to tne Lxpeaitioncry wroy renitcentisry ot Nanking | Iz
unc er tac dircetion of Coloasl Ito,

D. Ly autics and oy version of nmy participation in thils
affolr.

Insofar as uy part in this aoffeir is concernec, I nercly
attended thac trial as thc prosecutor under orders from Colonel Ito,
I can only venturc to guess et tine reason which proupted Colonecl
Ito, wiao had, 28 the prosccutor, personally intcrviewed and cross-
exauwincd the defendants, drawn the indZctiwsnt, and after the trial,
supcrviscd the enforcement of the sznuchce, o oraucr ri to attend
the trial in tahc copacity of prosccubtor. In sll probability, it
nust hanve been because I hou evoideG becorniing one of the trial
judges. Tae fact that Lieul W.NITSU ( ), ns law member,
would be in chlmrge of the wrial, in consideration of his (Colonel
Ito) renk, did not appenl t©o Colonel Ito.

««t any ratc, I aid not relish th¢ prospcect of being thc prosc-
cutor for the following rcasons: |

- 1. “fron tuc stanapolnt of International Iaw on Warfare, I
had grave tisgivings as to the propriecvy of the "hilitary Law
Voncerning Punisai.ent of Lneiy oirman®, .t the International
Confecrence for the Aevision of the International Law on warfars
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held ct L.GUZ 1.1:. vecewber 1922 through L,rcn 1923, rules am
regulations concerning aerial warfare were prescribed. Under
wfticle 22 and 24, restrictions on bowbing are established, but
this louw is yet to be enforced by tiaec various motions.

<. ko oticr nution hns establishea such a military regula-
tion in tae anunls of history,

e

3. Inaswuch us there is 4 ressomblc margin of error in
DOoLbing from nigh altitudes, when objects of no military value,
locateo ut varying distances from military targsts, sre hit, it
is extrcmely difficult to determine whcotiaer such "bowbing, straf-
ing or otaer forms of attack were carried out with the objeet of
.enocing and nilling innocent clvilinns", or whether the "bonb-
ing, strafing, or other forms of attack were carriea out with
tac purpose of destroyling cnd dunagling private property having
no rilitary value", or whetner tne "bonbing, strafing, or other
forrs of cttack of non-rilitary objects, except 1n unavoidable
circuustances, were purely delibernte", os expressec¢ in the
pilitary regulation,

I presutie this law was engcted by the Grend Irperial Head-
qutirters and the kinistry or war upon the assurance of the Japan-
¢33t Quthoritiecs on Internationsl Law thnot such n law would be
within the bounds of Internntional Law. Be that as it may, ns
for as 1 was concerncd, for the reosons advanced hercinbefors,

I never cid cpprove of the law, Furthermore, I repsat, I hid no
asslrce to be o party ia tals affuir, deiinitely not as a judge,
nor even Ld the prosccutor, nowever, once # nilitary lew is
€xtiblished by a stote, one obviously cannot refuse the arders
of his superiors in its proscecution, since as a eivil offiecial,
2 refusal would be tantaiount to weting contrary to orders.

Heretolore, I have never passcd judgment on a death sentence.
buring the tiue I was on active scrvicc on the front in Calna,
therc were nuerous cuscs of war criiies punishable by deatn under
the provisions of the militory law of the Expeditionary army in
vaina. dowever, even undcr tae inexorable nmchinations of the
steri wilitary low ana regaralcss of its neaessity from tie
stuadgpolnt of adlitary operdtions ny consclence would never permit
we Lo eandcl biae aeatn penilty; so I constuntly cndeuvoured to
avoilG such cases.

&4, lwy prcescent stand.

5 has been cleerly revenlca in the foregoing statanents,
Cesplte the fact tnat I hud no desirc to be party to ths atfalr,
I lmd no alternativce other than to conply with the orders of mny
superiors and attend the trial in the role of prosccutor.
Furtueritore, the situation was such that I attemled the trial
with practicully no opportunity to go through the docunents relot-
ing to the case. In otncr words, insofar as uy part in the case
13 concerned, I tcrely attemied the trial as the proxy of Colonel
Ito. It was a situstion wherc one's respect for auty peritted
no refusel,

I contend that those to be hceld truly accountoble for this
afffir are those conuocted with tae Grana Imperial deaaquarters,
toc Ministry of yar, and thc Military Police Headquarters., It
wus tacy who instigated tiae enactiicnt »of this law, moking it
retrective in araer to fit it to pust oifences; 2né tarough the
mediuw of a wilitary tribuncl rete out punishuent. It is 1wy
slncere opinion vuut in this conncction, tne military tribunal
was werely -n orgnn exercising the provisions of tas law. It is
Ly umerstinddng tiet the United States is a nation highly uwdvan-
ced in its conception o1 jurisprodence.

In the nore of justice wnd frow the standpoint of coomon sense
I fail ©o see how I 2 to be held accountable for this aflficr,
when wy sole connection with this satter was ny sttendcnee ot the
trial us 3 proxy. I nopefully sulwit this mmtter for your sound
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Post_Seript

«8 Of liarech 1945, I hive becn aflflicted with stommch ulccrs,
4nd o st11) under treatmsnt. I Gr. the sole support of ny family
consisting of wmy wife, ny aged uther, who is 71 geurs of -

4 £C,
anG ny infir.. wother, zge 69, who his been an invi1id for nore

than three years because of rheunatism, If there is a proba-
bllity of my being token into custoay, I would like to be exoner-
alcu 01 any charges lomedintely so that I liny be able to attend
U0 Ly personcl affoirs with pcace of wind,

T

In harch 1932 I wos groauated frow the Law School of the
I'okyo liperisl University. I had planned originally to becone &
Judicial officer, but in tnat sape year I was called to cetive
9y service with the irny. Then nnd thepe I decided to becone a
| genercl court offiecinl, 4t that time, o general court of ficial
wis a civil official, but in larchn 1942, by a revision of the
1, sysbtem, tnis position was placed on military status.

Thc period of nmy student aoys at midcdle and Nlgner schools,
} and iy undergradutite years at tiac Tokyo Impecrial University was
< the hoyaay for bhe teaching of democratic aoctrines, I becane
thorougnly inculecated with dexocretic concepts. Should it be
goou fortune to be rcleascd cond Cxonerutea of dl cnarges arising
I'row this arfair, it is wy express lntention to becone =« farnier,

tna at the sace tine aevote Ly cnergy to the furtiaering of the
| laeals of GeLocracy.

: FOor your reference and inforrsation, I have tppended aereto,
r

| 9 Sudlary of the various raterizls related td this casec., (See
| inclosures 4 to 9)

H.T.., Itsuro ( )
Octo ber 1945,

Inclosure No, 1

lilitary law  of the “pancsc Zxpeditionary army in China

| &rt., 1. This pilitary law shall apply to 2ll persons othcr
| then tnose of Juponese citiz wit hi zone of L.

operation of the Impericl LTRY

LIte 2. Lny person who cornits ang-or. all of“the following
acts snhnll be liablc to wllitary punishient:

o€Ce 1, *ny get -of conspirecy against the lr.pericl arny. ’
| S€C. 2. @ny espiomge activity.
l
| .
SCCe 3, «ny act not covercd by Sec. 1 ana 2, which shall -
be construsa as Jeoparaising thc safety, or haupering the
nilitary activity of the ltiperial urny,
W% Sl instigating, Gbetting, proroting, plotting, or . .

tiscarrizge of any or all of the acts hercinbefore wentioncd in
«r't, 2, shell be subject to punishaent, provided, however, that
punishr.ent shall be cditignted or restraincé in aceoraance withn

the rerits of the case,

-

&rte 4o Lhy individuol who comiits cny or 2ll of the acts
Lentioned under .rt. 2, 1d who confcsses of 1ls own volition
before any déiscovery of such act or acts is inde, shall have nis
runisiotent ritigated or shsll be spared.,

«rb. 5. hdlitary punishrient shall be in the followl ng
classcs,

S€C, 1, Death

e T e gy nrs
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Sec. 2. ILuprisonment
Q€ECes 3. DOanishment
O6Ce 4. Filne

Sec. 5. Confiscation

Ihe degree of punishtient shall be ricted 1n the order of the
precealng paragraphs.

ATt 6. ‘gbca.. loriitted)s
Inclosure Noe. 2.

lilitary Trial Rcgulations under the hilitary Law of the
Japanese Lxpeditionary arny in China.

v «orte 1o any inadividual violating the provisions of the
wilitary Law of the Japancse Expeditionary Lrny in Chaina shall be
tried oy the military tribuncl.

art. 2. Tne vdlitary tribunal sihall be establisned by the
Expcditioncry arny in China or by a suborcincte army thereof.

rte 3. The cilitary tribunal of tne Expeditionery .rmy in
China shall be vestca with suthority of juriscdiction over any
affair desigratcd by the suprere cornmnder,

P, 4. The rilitary tribunal of the various subordinate
arciies thereof snall be vestca with outhority of juriséiction
over any affalir involving violations of the military lew within
thc spheres of operation of their respective armies, provided,
however, tnet they o not conflict with the provisions of
asrcicle 3 .

The suprceoe coLiuonder shall be invesgted with the authority
tO ucsignote the military tribunal, which shall have jurisdiction
over n speclal case, regarcless of the provisions of the preceec-
ing paragraphs.

:..Cs 5. Thc presiding of ficer of the militory tribunal shall
be the supracne corr.anaer of the Expeditiomry arny, of the comnan-
alng gencral of tac subordinate arny thereof.

art. 6. The rilitary tribunal shall be coiposea of taree
JUCGEES.

Tac judges snall consist of two of ficers and onec law nember,
all of waorm siaacll b:i under the arders of the presiding of ficer.

arts 7. Tac rdilitary tribunal shall convene with the judages
tac prosecutor, and tie clerk of court in attendance.

Wrt, &, Lue udlitary tribuncl shall first obtain tane author-
ization of the supreaie co:rander before procesding with the trial

of a forelgner otiaer than a Chinese, z

«Tt. 9. Tae lows anC rcgulations governing the special court
Lartial under the arny court rartinl law shall apply to all other
ltels not covered by this law, as the situation periits.

Ly-laws
This law shcll be cffcetive ns of 1 October 1939,
Inclosurc No, 3

wxpecltiomry .ruy in Chlna wilitary Order No., 4

hMilitary Low concerning the Punishiient of Eneny .irnen,

Hope -

-] -




arta. 1, T!!g law sholl apply to =21l enery airmen who take
oort in raids against Japanese territories, Manchukuo, the zones
of rilitaery operations, ar who coLie within the spaere of influ-
€lice o1 the Expeaitiomry uriy in China,

ICe 2o, swny indivicual corwitting nny or 31l of the follow-
ing acts sanll be liable to rilitary punishoent:

Scce 1, .ny borbing, strafing or other forcs of
attack carricc out with the object of rienacing or killing inno-
cent civilians,

oeCs 24 «any bo.bing, strofing or other forus of
attack carried out with tane purposc of cdestroying anda deuinging
private property having no wilitsry value whatsoever.

MeCe 3o Dy Doiwing, strafing or otaer forus of nutack
ol non=-upilitery objcetives except in unavoideble circur.stonces.

YeCe 4o iny violntion of tiac International Law on War-
fore not iacluded in the above tanrece scetions.

This law shall aolso apply to any incdivicual who
participates in raids on Jupanese territorics, l.anchukuo, and
tiae zZones of wilitary operations, witih the intent of comudtting
any or all of tiae cets wentioned in the preceding sections, - cond
who cone into tae spacre of juriscdiction of the Expeditionary
«ri.y in China before cccomplishing his objective.,

art. 3. The penalty shall be Genth. However, this sentence
Lay be coumwuted to lifc icprisonment, or to a terw: of izprison-
cient not less tihan 10 years, Gepending on the werits of tane case.

«Ib. 4o Tac execution shall be by firing squad. In the

case of iiprisonuent, the sentence sanll be served in confinemcnt
for the tcro. of ioprisoncent.

i.rt. 5. Scntence smll not be imposed when there is valid
re2son for withholding punishnent.

+«PTe 6. Iiprisonwent snall be in accordmnce with the provi-

sions of criininol law, with the exception of thos stipulations
prescribeu unaer tais law.,

By-L-ws
Tnis law shull be eftfective as of 13 Lugust 19,42,

Lhnis law shull apply to any ané all such acts covered in
the provisions, comnitted prior to the date of its entcuiment,

Lnclosure No. 4

Staff Memo., No. 1140

SUBJLCT: JMano'pertainin to thc Disposition of Encmy lLirmen.
(per «;nolosurc%

FrOh: USHIROLIY.., Jun ( )5 Chisf of Staff, Expeditionary
LIy in China.

TO: KRk, Yueuo | ), Chief of Staff, 13 LTGLY

D.TE: 13 «ugust 19,2,

(Enclosure)

Military Locurcnt Ko, 2190 (Conficential)
SUBJECT: lLemo Perteining to the Disposition of Enemy ..irmen.

FrOL.: Vice-linister of War Kisura, Hyotaro ( )
0. "¢ USHIOMT Yo, Tuh..( ), Chief of Staff, Eapeuitionary
ariLy in China,
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fHcquest forwation of rules and regulations for the disposi-
tion Of cnowy alriicnh who coie within our sphere of juriscdiction

in connecetion vd th raids on Jopenese territorics, WINCAUKUO, or
owr zongs of rilitary operations.,

l. wny indvidunl whno abldes by tac terms of the Interna-
tioinl L&w on warfore siitll be trentcd as o prisoner of war;
ony in.ividunl who violutes thc provisions of the Interm tional
Law on .Jarfarc shall be ¢calt vith as o war crisinnl,

2. Jdnc suprcic comunnder in caarge of metionnl dcfeansc and
tae co.and ng genocrols of the various arnies (inclucding the
various amiics in Japan proper, anc her tcrritories, nnd the occu-
pational forces in dong Kong ( ctc.) shall treat enery aircen
wio trespass thcir respective spheres of jurisdiction as war

crilinils. .ny indaiviaucl who fulls under suspici*n sh7ll bs
referreC to Lnu rilitary tribunal.

1ae lnws ana regulations governing the special court cartisl
uucer tne provisions of the arny court rmurtinl law sanll apply to
vae Ldlitary tridbunal.

Inclosuwc No. 5

Staff Doc, No., 383-1 (Confidcntinl)
(Lilitary Section, Grond Icperial Headquarters)

oUoJdLCT: Naile pertalning to the Disposition of Eneny .(irren.

FrOl.: T.N.BE, deibu ( ), wSsistant Chlef of Staff, Grund
Iiuperial Hcoocdquarters.

102 USHIROWIY.., Jun, Chicf of Staff, Expeditionary «roiy in
Vhina. :

L.TE: 28 July 1942,

In regura to Lilitary Doce No. 2190 (Confidential) concerning
Uile Cisposition of tane cnpturcd enciy airrcn, request taut action
be deferrcd (Probobly until the .iddle of .ugust) penaing pro-
clowation of tane wilitary luow anu its of ficial announceiient, and
tne scheduling of the cate of execution of the .uuerican airmen.

Tac Granda ILiperial Heccguartcers will unike officinl announce-

.6t oI the punishient iiposed upon the [ rican alriicn, and

request tnat news of the cecision be transuittcd to the Chlef of
Staff as soon us the veraict is rcuched.

\riest omitted)
Inclosure No, 6

ULScaiCdnD: 22 October, 1250 hours
2 C.I VL 22 October, 1354 hours
FﬁQh: Calef of Steaff, Grand Inperial Headquerters
10: vhlef of Staff, Zxpeditionary .rmny in Chine
Redlogran. No. 453

In the futurc, announccment of vercdict of trial of enewny

cireen caargeG with ouvrages anG etrocities committed to wilitery

tribunnl, will be race by Grrnd Icperiol Hecdquarters. Maintain
absolute secrecy as to plqce of trial,

_9—
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. Inclosure MNo. 7 .

SUBJCT: Disposition of Convicted snierican airmen

FrO%L.: SUGLY..l.., Gen ), Chief of Staff

T0: tliTe. , « Shunroiku | ), Supreme Commanaer,
Lxpeai ti onery wriiy in Chinc.

Didb 10 October 1942,

r 1. Yo be punis heu by ucath:
i LibuarK* Lane Léwara, pilot.
' . F:.utﬂo.n* willial, L, lJilOt
~, olPuala™ dirold ..., gunner
2. Lgath sent ence conmutec:

hisEDaX* (TN ) ( presunably RELER)
LEDLr wobert J, assistant pilot.
NEERUSOZ™ (TN: Presuriably NZILSL )
NIEISEN C. J., navigator.
HL.ITO* (TN: presunably WIIITE)
wdITs, robert I, asslistant pllot
Bias™ (TN: presuicbly BuRi).
Bk George', navigator.
DESHIGTL* (TN presunably DuSHLIBUR. )
LU_SHLWIUR Jacob, bombnaler.

3. Datc of . executioni: 15 Oectober. For further cetalls,

nmave staff of uxpecitionary «rny contact ne.

L. Tne five whosc ceath sentences arc comruted arc asreby
sent enccG to life iuprisonment. Tney o«re adjudged war criminals
and s sucia shoula receive no consideration as prisonsrs of war.
In no case will they be repatricted ns prisoners of war in the
event of oh exchange of prisoners.,

Inclosure No. 8
agcora of Sxceution
Nationmality: :lerican.
HOgUlu AU *:'Dane Ddwaré, 2¢ Lt, age 27, 95 Squadron, 17
. bouber Coirand, USa.F.
Far0™ williar by 24 L6, age 23, 34 Squadron, 17 Bonmber
Coriraong, WBu..E.
SUETSU™ Horold &4, Sgbt, age 20, 34 dquadron, 17 bomber
CD;;u-.I;nﬁ, Beal.

On 28 Lugust 1642, at tae trinl hcld by the NOBOKU | )
7330 Unit (TN: 13 «2oy) Militory Tribunal, the above rnientioned
ilen wcere adjudged pullty anc sentcnced te denti for violating the
provisions of the "rilitory ILow Concerning Funishuent of Eneny
Lirwuen®,

The following is a writtcn account of thc exccution carried "
out under tiae cxccution orders issued by the commanding general of =
the NOoO«U 7330 Univ, 15 October 19LZ, E

1. TLatec of execution: 15 -October 1942, |

) 2. Flace of cxecutiocon: Fublic Cemetery No. 1, YIN-CHL.-CHATI
( ) CHUNG-4ZIN | ) district, SH.NGH.I ( )
‘a
:._ﬂ 3. Lxecutioner: TuTSUD., Layiro ( ), wardcn,
P wxpcGitiomry «rny Feniltentiary 2t ehanghal, rcpreseating JO0K.,
1 Toki jiro ( ) Head' ..arccn, Lxpecitionary .riy Militory
iy Penitcentiaries,
.
¥
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4s witnesses: Colonecl ITO0, «kinobu ( ), Prosecutor.
FUJIT.., “hosel ( ), Clerk.
l.ecdical Officer of the NOBORU 7330 Unit, lst
Lt M.SUTGNI, lLaruo ( ), Mecical Detach-
Jdent
Interpreter, MIUR., Yasutoshi ( ) IF

Interpreter, changhai tdlitary rolice decad-
quarters,

>«  wpectators present Oy perr.ission of the arosecut or:

Llcutencnt Colonel NOGUCHI, I_se s ( ) BALNCGEAT

iilitary rolice deadquartcrs,

hﬁjur'OGhTu, Izuni ( )5 Sncrngiani kilitary Folice

deadquarters -

st Lt SETO, ~itnro ( ) ©hanghoi Lilitary Police
' deadw arters. '

Lt Col NAK.LKO, Saburo | 0, ledical Detachnient,

NOBOAU 7330 Unit.

1st Lt .INOSHIT.., “hikno ( 0, lcaical Letachuent,

2OBOAU 7330 Unit
< reCiernl corps ficn fron. tas nediol detachaent of the
NODOAU 7330 Unit.

6. Firing squac ang Sceurity gucrds: Under the cominng of
First Licutcnant L..SaIhd,, Goro, cotnnding of ficer of the NOEBORU
7330 Unit G rds, one non-cowissionce officer, =nd nine enlistec
iwen were assigned to the Iiring squad. Six of the ILENn Were
cirecctly assigned roles 2s newbers of tnc firing sSquac, while
tarce were Lostcl as security guords around the ceiletery.

7« Health and paysical wcll-belng of tne condennee ucn:

‘ Tae condeuncd nan urrived at Lle execution grounds at
1030, escorted by tahrce turnkeys, and thz nbove Lientioned guards,
T tile request »f thc €Xecutioner, tnesc Len Werc given a physi-
C2l examination by the wibnessing reciceal officer, who pronounced
thel &5 being plhysically sound, WAercupon, tne €Xccutioner,
tarcugn tle uediur ol an intcrprctar, inforcec the ien of the
12cu that tne wentn scntence pronounced by the NOBORU 7330 Unit
Lilitury Tri ounsl Al <8 ..ugusst 1942, wiaulu now be oarried out
ena &skea if tlere Were any last stoteauents to be ade, 7
ConGerned md none to ruke.

)
L1C

o,

+ rreparction for execution. (O..it ted)
S¢ hebthoo of cxecution, Firing Squodé (viest Jluitted),

10, The cXecuhion cornienced at 1630, wna was coLpleted by
1720

kilitary Tribunel of the NOBORU 7330
unit |

FUJIT., Chosel, Clerk of Court.

ITO, «kinobu, Frasceutor

VOl. Legol Deyerticont.

L..TSUD... Jaljira, warden, bxpedition-

AT oy Penitentiary at Shanghai.

NN

(
(
(
(

Dateda: 15 Qctober 1G4 2.,
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Ineclosure No, 9
necord of the Trisl
(frececing Stotetent oritted)

Defendunts:  HORWMLKU®, Danc Zdwnrd
L.ZOD,L*, Robert J.
LERUSON*, C. J.
FU..R0* y Williac D,
H.ITO*, Robert L,
Bia.*; weorge
SUPATEO*, Harsla i.
, LESAILJ..*, Jacob
dave been found guilty as carrged, a2nd are hereby scntenced to
L;.i‘;a.tﬂ-

feasons_ 1or the Sentence

It aas been proven to the satisfaction of the Court toat in
arca 1942, thc defendants, Lotiviteh oy thcir eporting instinects
-UC Sense oI glory, in response to o e~ll {op participunts in an
air r.id, wnce applicontion to tacir surrcntly attzeacd unit;
thst for 1 _eriou uf aver 4 wonth, tnoy, together witn the other
Lralnees, r.ocelved sncelal eoibat troining; tnat tncy wubarked
frous tie part of oLl LauNCISCO0, on 2 pril abaeré tac vireraft
carricr HOWNLT, nnd oi taat aiy wer'e wpprisea, l'or tac first
tice by Colonel LUOLLILL L, bnat they were ta ralc Jor ol In tive
loriations of lo boabers, oné were bricfed €8s to the detdls of
bhe r=id -nu taz resacetive cissian Jf edcn craft; and tant on
thesworning of 18 Lpril, at nbout. 0800 hours, at 2 point 2pproxi-
Lately 359 north latituuc, onc 153V enat longitude, thne first
pl~ne took off frost the filight ueek, rollowed in cloase oarocr by
Che Otner planczs, "hAeoced ror btie raid an JabP' LN,

ls The Gefendants, H0rULu, 4U*, pilot, LEEID..*, co-pilot, and
LRiRUSON™, navigator, occupsnts of plone No. 6, o North suerican
B-<5 rediun bouber, rrriveé sver T0LY0 at =bout 1300 hours,
Sucuchly exhibitcé cowardice waen controntcé witih opposition in
ulle iy fraw thc grouncd, unc with the intcent st cowing, killing
g woundi ng innocent clviliuns, andu Wrcnking anvoe on resiccnces
nnc otacr livinog quarters of no Lilitory signifieancec wnatsoever,
Uogebner with the other twelve plancs C¢ic¢ corry on inciscerictinate
boiibi ng cnc striiing, taerco, cousing tiance deabth ane LI ary of
“uout 10 eivilinus, nné the sestruction >f nwierous residences:
Id1lowing vaieh they cttempted to cs3enpc U0 tac Caine mainland,
U noon of the sopc CLy, they were foreet to 1:nd 20 the water in
Che vicinity orf NING:O ( )y CAELT.NG ( ) province,
wacre tiey were coptured oy thc J2pnnesec oriny on the 20th,

L R Celcnuants, IU..n0*, p1lot, H.IT0*®, nssistant pilot,
ban™, novigator, SU-.I5U » Bunucr, nna DESATLJLF, ooLbardier,
vedupcnos of plune o, 16, 5 Larta anericin B-25 Reclun bongr,
Arrived over 1L.GoY.. | ) =t about 1lols nours, =fternosn of
1o .pril, suuaenly cxaibited eowarcice Witen confronted with oppo-
S8ition in the cir ¢ fror. Lic ground, anc with tac intent of
cowlng, killing, anc vounaing innscent civilians, cna wreaking
AVoC on resiacnces “né stocp iving quarters af no uilitary
si&nificance whatsocver, togetuer with ‘ngvacr plang, ddcé carry
on lnuiscrizincte Do.:bing of suia city, "nu further cic willfully
0. kKnovingly strafe o school bulluing cuacreby cnunngering the
lives of nuw.irous 3erdsl catluren at riceds in tac yara, cnd
tiereby cousing tiac ceath o injury of 30 or core civilians,
cna tue gestruction of nuwersus residences, following which they
attearpbcl to flec to the CaTi Liinlanc, .t 2140 that cvening
Wiile over N.NC:'LKG ( ), KILKGSI ( ) province, tacy
wol'e forect to parachute beetuse of fucl exiwustion, and weorc
lomedistely erptured by Jdrpancse wriy units in thut vicinity.
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+he foregolng facts are basecC on the (1) depositions wede by the
elght wefendants at their trial, ané the (2 copy of thc acknow-
ledguent nde by the SHLNGHLI Mlitary Police unit in response
to thc request of tnc lilitary rolice Headquarters for full
infor.ation as to tnc extent of camapges and injuries sustained
in saic affair. Tane tribunal finds the eight defendants guilty
of viovlating the provisions of Sec. 1 and 2 of Lrt 2 of the
Militery Lew concerning the Punishment of Enemy 4Lirmen, and
hereby pmss judgient and inposc sentences under the provisions

of article 3 of ssid law.

Dated: 28 fugust 1942,

NOBORU 7330 Unit l.ilitary Tribunal.
(S) Lt Col NuKaJO, Toyomz, Chief Judge

(S) 1st Lt W.MITSU, Yusei, Law Mémber
(5) 24 Lt O0xuDa, kohei, Julge.
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LT COL HENPFEN: Does the Commission desire to finish the translation ; '
tomorrov morning? 3
COLONEL iC REYNOTDS s Yes, tomorrew morning,
} The Commission will adJotrn until nine o'clock tomorrov morning, j

“hereuron the Commissian adjourned at 1655 hours on 22 March 1946
to reconvene at 090C hours on 23 March 1946, ) g
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MORNING.  SESSION

ee« Pursuant to adjournmcnt, the Couwmission reconvened ot 0900
hours, 23 .arch 1946, at which time all of the kembers of the Commission,
the accused, counscl for prosccution and defense, the interpreting staff
end the official reporter resumed their sects in thoe court roais ..

COLONEL MC REYNOLDS: The Comudss.on is in ‘sessidne.

PROLECUTOR: [t the last scesion, the Cowalssion requested copies
of some of the Transcript @xhibits which had been prescnted to the
Commission. ,t this time I would like to give the Conmission copies of
those exhibits. (Prosecution's Exhibits 21, 22, 23 and 24.)

ot this time we request that tix translictors continue with the
translation of liajor Haoto's statenent.

(Whereupon the transletors took turns in transleting the statement
of Major Hata until they had completed the tronsletion.)

PROSECUTOR: (ilej Dwyer) Coloncl Hendren will tecke the stand.
JOHN H. HENDREN, JR

a vitness callecd on behalf of the prosccuticn, was recalled to the
stand, duly reminded that he wes under oath, was excmined cnd testified
as follows:

DIRECT EX/)IANLTIVN

(Mr. Krantz interpreting)

Q (By Major Dwyer) Colonecl Hendren, in Prosccution's Transeript
Exhibit No, 25, the Hata statement, there appears on the lost
page thereof, the neme of lst L¢euucnhnt hamitso Yusci. Ttho is
that man?

PROSECUTOR: I withdrsw that part of the guesticn that statces
"Who is that man?n

Q In the course of your investigation, thL ycu iad occasion to
ascertein who this person is?
QY hen we started investigating the case, we rea aeross thet name

on Hata's stetenent and I made investigation and o request to
Japen thet this man be identified and apprehended,” The Japanese
Government wcs unable to identify this men froia the nemc of
"irmitsu" from the information we had ot the time as to his ste-
tion. The interpreter in the ;llied Henaquarters in Japen re-
cxamined the writing in Japonese nnd deteriiined thet tne neme
would be Vjako rathcr than amitsu,

D.FENSE: If the zourt, plcasec, we move that the ansver be stricken,
Colonel Hendren hes tustlficd ¢.s to whet somcone elsc lias done viitnout
any besis of his own personal knowledge of the facts.

PROSECUTOR: M2y I be pcrmiﬁted to ask another question and I
think it will clarify that. You may be permitted to raserve the objeetion,

COLCONEL HC RFYNCLDE: Proceed,

SN

|
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Q Colonel Hendren, subsequent to ascertaining this information, did
you go to Sugamo Prison?p
A Yes. The man whose neme appeorced as nako had becn apprchended and

placcd in the prison therc and I nnd interrogated lieko there ond
he admitted that he wes a member of the court.,

DEFENSE: 1 rencw my obgection to what a man namcd wako testified
to in Sugamo Prison and what nppears in this statement here, cs to any
errors in' it. The stetement as to what the Interpreter scction in
Jepan did, not in his prescnce and without any kacwledyge as to how it
wes done, I move should be stricken from the reccord,

i If the Court, plecase, I might add to ny statemcnt thot at the tiue
I was 1n Jepan in the lattcer part of Decenber 1945 and ecrly part
of January 1946, I had tic interproter scction re-translate this
in my presence and they informed ¢ that the name was subject to
interpretation as liamitsu snd as wiko. They verified thot by the

Japancse dictionarics there.

) Did Licutenant yjako Yusei, now Ceptein --

COLONEL MC REYNOLDS: Just a mo.ent. Vic will rule on thc obgection,

DEFENSE (Capt Fellows) Major Dwycr has asked permission to ask a
couplc more questions and we are agrceable but we reserve the right to
rencw our objection.

Q Did Lieutenant Vako, now Ceptain, state to you that he had been a
liember of the court that tricd the Doolittle fliers?
9 Yes, he did,

DEFENSE: If the Court, plcase, I object to this linc of gucstion-

ing. My objcction is mede -- this is not on the point my objection is
made to. If we want to go into thet, fine, but aftcr my obgcetion is
| covered,.

PROSECUTOR: 4s I understand, counsel!s obgection is that the
statement mcde by the i.terpreters as to the interprctation of the werd
jamitsull —-

{ DEFENSE: Ay objection was originally bascd on Colonel Hendrents

| statement that the Interpretation Section in Tokyo hed changed the inter-
pretation on it, ./t thot time there was no stotement as to how he knew
that, and my motion wrs to strike¢ that answer, '

PROuECUTOR: we subnit to o ruling of the Comulssion,
COLONEL MC REYNOLDs: Objection over-ruled.

Colonel Hendren, I cell your attention to Prosccution's Transcript -
Exhibit No, 25, inclosurc 8, which is thc rccord of oxccution, :
Paragraph 3 thercof cnd the last page thereof, refer to a Tatsuta

Gaijiro. Pleasc state to thc Comaiss.on vhet, if eny, circum- |
stances surrounded the appunding of this exhibit by you, becring i

on that name?
A Lt the same time thot I wes interrogating the Interpretert's Sec-

tion 2s to theo translation of the namc "jamitsu", | asked them if 3
3

O

this nome, I believe it wes Gaigiro, somcthing likc thet, could
be Sotojiro, th¢ nome of Captain Tatsuta, and the interpieter
told me thet it also was subject to two interprctations and

194
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parhnps‘Sotogiro was correct rather than the name written on the
translation,

Colonel Hendren, in Prosecution's Transcript Exhibit No. 25, there
appears the name, Lt. Col., Nakajo Toyama, Can you state to the
court anything about this name?

This name appeared in the papers as the President of the military
Commission which tried the Doolittle fliers and we made several
requests to the Japanese Government that he be apprechended, They
were unable to identifly the person of that namc so when I was in
Japan, in Tokyo, the latter part of December and carly part of
January, I went to the interpreter's section and asked if there
could be some mistake in the interpretation of that name. The
interpreter, on examination of the vapanese exhibit--the exhibit
written in Japanese--said that the name of Makajo Toyama should
be interpreted as the name of Naka o Chujo, and that was a similar
interpretation,

In the preparation of this case did you atteapt to apprehend Lt,
Colonel Nakajo -- Nakajo Toyama or Chujo?

Yes, I made investigation in the Japanese yar Departiient in .apan
as to where this man was located and found that at that tine he
was reported to be in Java, I sent a radio request from the China
Theater Headquarters to the Allied Forces in Singapore for his
apprehension,

was this radio comumnicated throuph the China Thezter Headquarters?
Yes, it was,

Do you have the radio with you?

I have a certified copy of the radio which was received from Sing-
apore in reply to the radio sent by the Comnanding General, China
Theater,

¥What did the radio say?

One dated 1 February stated that Lieutenant Colonel Nakajo Chujo
had been repcrted dead by the British autnorities on Rempang
Island and that that office had asked ALFSEA for written proof of
death. That came from the British Forces in Singapore,

Is there anything further ;ou have to say on this subject, Colonel?
A .later radio received on 7 February relative to the samc subgject,
referred to the apprehension order for Lieutenant Colonel nNaka jo
Chujo.

¥hat does that radio sgw?

It reads, "See apprehension order for Licutenant Colonel Nuka o0
Chujo issued by this Headquarters in early January at the request
of your Liaison but could not be effected owing to death of Naka jo
Chujo after arrival Reipang Islend., Much regret failure to catch
him alive,n

PROSECUTOR: No further questions. You may cross-examine,

(By Maj Dwyer) One more question, Colonel Hendrean, did Lieutenant
Wako state tc you that he was a law momber of this court?

YeS, he didt

PROS.LCUTOR: You may cross—examine,

195
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cused,

Stand'
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DEFENSE: No questions by difense,

PROSECUTOR: 4ny questions by the Commission?

COLONEL MC REYNOIDS: fthero appear to be nonc. The witness is ex-
PROSECUTOR: (Col. Hendren) We will now eall Major Dwyer to the

ROBERT T. DWYER

recalled on behalf of the Progecution, was rcminded thet Lic was still
under oath, wes examined ~nd testified as follows:

.

O
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DIRECT EXAMIN.T.ON

(By Lt Lol Hendren) Major Dwyer, in the course of your investiga-

tion of this case, have you met a Caesar Luiz dos Remedios?
Yes sir, I heve,

#Will you tell the Commission where Mr. Reoaedios is &t this tame?
On Sunday night, larch 17th, thc night before Lhe opening of this

triel, I accompanied hiu to the Shenghai Goneral hospital and he
is there at this time.

.11l you tell the Commission, if you know, what is —- why he is
there,

Yes sir, I taiked to his personal physician who attended an operi-
tion perfonacd on him rt approxinntely widnight on thet night,
under o diagnosis of Tuberculosis of the intestines,

Is Mr. Remedios able to appeer and testify before tiis Couwniss.on?

No sir, His doctor scys he caanct be reimoved -nd is in very scrious
condition, -

Major Dwyer, in your -- in the course of your investigation of this
casc, I will ask you if you have cver scen this documunt?
Yes sir, 1 have,

I will now have the document morked by the reportcr os Prosecutionts
Transcript rxhibit No., 26,

(Document so marked)

Mejor Dwyer, will you tell the Coumission what the document is?

This is an original statement civen by ir. Remcdios on the 19th day
of September 1945 to Coptain James S. Beiley, ..ssistont Theater
Judge /dvocate, China Theater.

MeJor Dwyer, docs that document refir to issucs involved in this
case?

Yes Sirc

Major Dwyer, have vou had an opportunity to sec the sisncture of
Mr. Remedios?

Yes sir, many times,

I will have you examine the exhibit 2nd €sk you whether or not thot
document is signcd by Mr, Remedios?
(after examining signature) Yos, it is.
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I will ask you whether or not the document was sworn to before
Captain Balley? and whether or not it is o sworn statcuent?
Iy I think the docuncnt speaks better for itsclf thoan the witncess

who was not present.

PROSECUTOR: /[t one of the exhibits ycsterday, the counsel reiscd
an objection as to whether one of the document wes o sworn statement
and anticipating such an objoction, I was attempting to cover the
matter.

DEFLNSE: (Capt Fellows) The question could be wsked whethor this
was a sworn statemont rather than if thce witnuss werc present,

PROSECUTOR: (Maj Dwyor) I may be atle to clcar this up if I wmey
make a voluntary statement,

PROSECUTOR: (Lt Col Hendren) Doecs the definse object to the
statement of the witness?

DEFENSE; Yes, until this is rulcd on. 411 we want die for the
documunt to speak for itself. It is obvious what it is,

PROSECUTOR: I will withdraw the previous question,

DEFENSE: Withdraw the objection,

Q Me. jor Dwyer is the document e sworn statement of the person who

mede it?
A Yes sir, it 1s,

PROSECUTOR: %te will now offer in evidence Prosccution!s Trans-
cript Exhibit No, 26 marked for identificetion, now offcred &s Prosccu-
tionts Transcript Exhibit No. 26.

DEFENSE: No objection a2s to thec admissibility.

COLONEL MC REYNOLDS: Prosecution's Transcript Exhibit No., 26 will
be receivad in evidunce,

(Prosecution!s Transcript sxhibit No.
26 for identification was received
in evidence.)

PROSECUTOR: Does defunse wish to ask any questions of this witness?

DEFENSE: No,

PROSECUTOK: are thoro any questions by the Court?
COLONEL MC HEYNOLDS: No,

PROSECUTOR: May the witness be excused?

COLONEL MC REYNOLDS: Thore appearing to be no further quustions,
the witness is excused,

(Vhereupon the witness withdrew from the witness stand and resumed
his sezt- in the court room.)

PROSECUTOR: We request thet Major Dwyer reed Exhibit No, 26.

(Whercupon Prosecution's Transcript Exhibit No.26 was read,)
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Oaesar Iuiz Dos Renedios, being duly sworn, deposes and says:

My nane 1s Caesar Iuiz Dos Renedios. I an a Portuguese citizen holding
Portuguese passport 2315. My father is Portupuese, while [y nother is
Jaepanese. I an able to speak Chinese, Engligh. Jananesge, and.Portugueae.

I was born and have lived all iy 1ife in Shanshai, China,

On 26 Juno 1941, I was called co the Japanese Military Police Head-
quarters at the Bridgehouse, Shanghai. Ever since that tine I was cetained
by the Japanese Military Pélicc. °n 10 July 1941, I was transferred to
Kiangwan, and on 27 Septenber 1941 was triec by the Jeapanese {330th obori
Unit (this is the Shanghai Court Martial Unit). I was sentenced to seven
years for investigating and hindering Japanese activities and also for being
Accuscd as a spy. Cn 16 October 1941, I was taken to the Jepancse FWanking
Military Prison, +

Cn 8 Decenber 1941, I heerd that the Qar had brokxen out. On 26 Harch.
1942, I was taken hack to Shanghai to the Shanghai 4ilitary Prison at
Kiangwan, to act as an interpreter for thoe Japanese. This place is also
callec the "Civic Centor'. During all the ti.ae of ny 1aprisonient, I was
used &s an interproter because of y knewledzo of languages. On 28 August
1942, scven United States airnea fro.a two B-258 which had particisated in the
bonbing of Tokyo on 18 °Aopril 1942 froua the U; S. Alrcraft Carrier Hornet were
drought to the Hiangwan Military Prison. One plane crashed in the China Sea;
two rien were drowned and threo seved., This was told to ne by Lt. Meder.

I net the followine aen, on 28 Augsust 1642, at Yiangwan Military Prison,
who were lenbers of a B-25 crow of the 34th Boabarcnent dquadron: 2nd Lt.
Willian Glover Farrow, 2nl Lt. George Barr, ond Lt. Robert L. dite, Sgt.
Harold A, Spatz, ant. Cpl. Jacob DeShazer. At the sane tine, I net the follow-
ing two nen of the 95th 3ombardient Squadron, 17th Group: 2nd Lt. Charles J.
Nielsen anc 2nd L%, Robert J. Meder. On 14 Cetober 1942, I wet 2nd Lt. Dean
A Hallnark, who caie froa a B-25 of the 95th Squadron. All of tho above
naned. éight fliers were teken fron the Bridsechouse in Shanrshei on 28 August
1942 to the Kiangwan Military Prison, also known as the Civic Center. Lt.
Hallmaerk was sick at this ti.ie anc. was inaediately returned to tho Bridgzehouse,

anl I di‘n't see hin until 1% October 1942,
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Heporp of C, L., Dés Renerios, continued:

On 28 August 1942, all of the above men, with the exception of Lt.

malluark, were held at Kiangwan Militery Prison. Durin,’ tho sgeriod of their

coufineuaent at Kiangwan, I acted as their luterprotor. From that tine oh,

I was with thon constantiy. I went with then to excercisoc, wash, ete. I

. askod. thon where they coae froa and how they haed coace. Monthe after that,
a Jepancse prosecutor [vhose nae I don't now) of the Military Court at
Kiangwan took their picturee., At thet tine I was also their interpreter.

After thet I took their cescription of their houe eddress, schools attended,

and infornation about their Ary career. This infor:atioa hac heen requested

by the Japanese. Durins the tiae I ectod as their interpreter, we becane
very close friends. I told then about Shanghei, and thoy tcl” ne all their
storics of their life, ote.

Cr. 14 October 1842, Lt. ¥ 1liark was brousht in froa the 3ridgechouse.
I also asked hia for his addrass, about his efucation, and whet he did before
anc. after joining the Arny.

On 14 October 1942, I was instructod by Sercemnt Tetsuta (later Captain)

to have Lt. Farrow, Lt. Hﬁllwark,.a;d S5cts Gpaatz sisn thoir naies on two

blank sheets of whiin paper, One vage was sinedl by each of thea in the

niccle of the sheet, and the other vege wag signerl Dy cach of thea at the
bottoil. Theoy asked .ie why they were aace to siom these payers. Tatsuta tolad
e that they were signing these as a recelpt for theoir belonrings, an” that
he would fill the rost in Javanesce later on.

vator Tetsuta gave cach two sheets of paper; onn on which to write a
lotter to their fauil&. which he saif he would send thru theRed Crogg: and
the other sheect was tn be used to descridbe the treat.aient thecy received by
the Japanesc while they were confinnd. At that tiqe I din't know what the
Japanese were going to do to these three airaen., The fliers asked ne what
they should write. My opinion was to sive a little itop hat" for the
Japaucse, so that thoy would be siven ,w00d treaticnt later on, I dicn'g
reag the letters, but pave their to 5S¢4, Tatsute carly the next orning.

On 15 October 1942, the threc above acntionesd airuaon left Kiangwan,
loaving their prison beloncings behind. Thenext fay, Lt. Hite, Lt. Moder,

Lt. Nielsen, Opl. DeShazer, and Lt, Barr, were tokon to the storerooi to
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Heoorty cf C. L. Dos Renedios, continued:

piclz out their own helongings. At that tiae the /uaré in charge of the
storercoil, Lance First Class Private Suzuki, cnlled ne to nct as an inter-
preter. _By iistalce, he hrow:ht out the flrin- jacket of 5izt. Harold A,
opetz which ho had in hie cell. They asked the other five airnen to pick
out their own helongingss, The five airnen picked up their clothing that was
in the stororooil and tnsk it to thelr cells. I heve a very stronz belief
that thece three airicn werc shot on 15 Cetober 21942,

My rcason for believing that they were shot was brcause when drisoners of
war are transferred to a Aifferent prison, theoy taxe their belonrings with
thea, while in this case the flyinc jackets which wore with the throe fliers
were left bohind., Lance First Cless Private Suzuki scolded tho other quard
at that tine for beinﬁ so carcless in trinsing in the wrongs clothing. Risht
away, I har. the idea that the threce airneon rmust have been shot, but I disn't
tcll the rest of the five airien about it. Lt. Meder asked e what becaie
of the threc other fliers. 1Mot to dishearten the other five reaaeining
pllots, I trld hin that naybe they were token over to see thelr plane which
had crashec, becausc Sxt. Gpatz was with the two pilots (Lt. Hallinark and
Lt. Farrcw).

A week aftor that, S.:t. Tatsuta called ne up at six o'clock in the
evening to act ag an interproter for the five romaining airien. They were
supyosed to be sentenced to déath by the court :iartial at Xiancwan. They
were inforned that they were sentenced to death, dut they had a special
garﬂoﬁ, anf. that their sentences hﬁd been coimauted to life iaprisonient by
this court nartial, which had convicted then for 1achine—-gunning civiliars
ant. school children at Tokyo. Lt. Meder saic that the 1achine guns were
nevér fired and that they only cCroppef their bomds on nilitary tarcets.

Lt. Hite and Lt. Meder also told e to promiee the: that when I ¢t ~ut of the

ailitary priscn at Kiancwan to inforn the War Departaent in Washington that

they were sentenced te life imprisonnent.
During their coﬁfinenent. the renaining five airnen carved their nanes
and. dates nf flights and confineaent on the werden flaor of their cells

usin;z fish bones and sea shells as their instruaents.
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Report ¢f C. L., Dos Ronedios, eontinund,
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When they firs: arrived et Klanswan, they cccupled cells twe teo eight,
inclusive; each bteins placed in selitary eonfinecient. On 14 Oct-ber 1942,
Lt. Farrow was brousht t coll nuiber five of the second section of the
building;. Spatz stayoed ir coll nwiber six oppusite Farrow, and Hallnark was
brougsht in fron tﬁc Military Police Headquartiers, Bridgehouge, Shanzhai and
wag located in cell nunber eisht. Farrow £ave e the following: articles on
the cvenings nf October 14ih: One Anericen Ited Cross cars in the nane of B,
Farrow; elceven Bank of Anerica traveler checks, in denonination of $1C.00
cach and si;med by Farrow; and cne social security card in the nane of
Willian G, Farrow and a phote of a girl, All these articles were held by ne
froa 14 October 1942 until turned wver by ne to Capt. J. S, Bailey, Wer
Cri.ies Sectiun, on 18 Soptenber 1945, Lt. Farrow handed these to re stating
that sone day I night .ake use of then.

Around the first of the year 1945, I talked with First Sercsecant Mayanaa,

who is the assistant jailer at the Xianswan Militery Priscn and who was a
Lance Corporal Guard at that prison in 1942, ﬁhilp having a few cdrinks, by
the slip of his tonsue, he sai” he difn't like tn pick up the ashes of persons
who had been cremated £ 1lawings their executiom by the Japenese., He said he
hat gone cut three times ¢ pick up ashes, twice for Japanese and once for

the three airnen, Americans. This stateaent he stuopped right away realizing

—— — e — =
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what he had gaid,

Set. Tatsuta asked ne to have Lit, Hellnark'!s swiner flying jacket washed,

which was a leather jecket. He told ne to have Hallnark!s naile removed from |

= E——— — o —
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the jacket. He aleo asked if I knew a tailor in Shanshai that could cut down
this jacket to fit hin, as he wanted to wear it. I believe thet this Jecket =
15 8till in Tateuta'!s possecsi n, unless ho has piven it to scnecne clse, At -
the present tine, Tatsuta, now Captain, ig at theﬁHankow ifilitary Prison.

It was the practice of the Jagan?su at Eiangwan t° take prisoners con-
demnes. t. death to a Chinese crenatury in Kianswan, oppusite the race crurse,

and execute then by sho-ting then. All Chineso werc buried in gsraves, while

Japanese an? Anericans were creuated at the Japancse Association Crematorian, f
I feel quite pusitive that the three nissing Anericen airnen were taken out
=l




Reorrt of Co L, Dog Renedios, centinued:

cn the nnrning of 15 October 1942 end executed by rifle fire. This is based
upon Ly kncwledy,ze of Jaymnese custons in this respect, because I c¢verheard
Meyeoa's conversation, and becnhuse of the Aisprsition of their fliﬁht Jackets.
Als: Yecause Lt. Halliark, Lt. Farrow, end S-t. Syatz were never seen or
heard cf afver that ‘nie. In accition, Lecause »f the fact thet Tetsuta ha’
salc. that all eisht fliers were sentenced t. ceath, but that five cf them had
hac. their sentences conmuied t. life iapris-nient.

| I didn't attend the court martial of the fliers, which was held on 14
Uctober 1942 in an LM shaped buildin;:, which is used by the Jepanese for
c.urt nartials, and which is l.cate? just .utside thé Lris'n walls, I Ao not

kn w the neabers of the c-urt nartial, hut it is a Japanese custen t- selcet

& high rankins cfficer as the Judge. The crurt tisclf is cerposed of a judee,
prosecutor, tw. officials who help set the sentence, anf. an enlister nan to
act as court clerk. It is ay belief that the Bentenbe f “eath cn the fliers
had been set and ajproved hy nilitary headquariers in Tokyo because the fliers
haf. orizinally been talren to T xyc for questi-ning in April and returned to
Shanchei in June. Xowever, the Comianling Cfficer of the 13th Arny Eead-
quarterc in Shanshei had to put his seal upon all death sentencas. I Ao not
off hand kn-w the nene af the Coananding Officer. At the tine ~f the exXecu—
tivn, Tatsute was in charse »f the ailitery priscn. The firing squad wag
usually ccaposerd of juards fron the Noberi Unit. Thesc nen were recularly
usec as uards for the ,-ates nf the 13th Aray Headquariers compound. The
firin;; squad usually consisted of a Lance Corporal and five or six enlisted
nen.

The renaining five fliers reaained at Kianswen Military Pris>n until
17 April 1943, at which tine they were taken to Naakins., I was still at
fienswan Pris-n as an interpreter and innate et the tinethey left. 2

During their confineiaent, I ¢iA n-t see any «f then beidge hit by any

guard. or otherwise tcrtured. They asked for foreizh bYorks to reed and

B Wl

Tatsuta always yronised he would ot a few borks for then, which he never Aid.

Finally Meder asked ne if I hed any bc-ks. I had sine at heoine, and received

sernission to give the bdo-ks tn the airnen; however, the juards would look

thru then before I could give then to the fliers.

by




Rapnrt of G, L. Dos Renedics, continued,

Thoy usually had about an hours nxercise a day, unless the (uards, who

were noraally lazy, fi“n't went t-

stey nut that lonsz, and on thoso days, they

mly exercised aboui 15 ninutes. N.rualiy they were allowed to take a bath

once a wecok,

The found was the saic as the Japanese pris nors received. This wasg

alweys insufficient foq “ed. It consigied of 2/4 of a pint of rice three

tiacs e day; tee three tines a day; and when the weather was hot they zot an

extra cuy of tea” at nisht,

They could wag thenselves in the aornings. They usually washed their

clothes during cxercising periods as part of the oxercise. This was d-ne in

the open air., Medical attention was extrencly slow in coing and even for

the Jepanese prisoners itwas slow,

The followin, Jepanese were statinod at Xianswan Military Prison on

15 Ceteber 1942, at the tine of the execution of the airnen: 35et. Tatsuta,

at present at Henkow., ILance Corporals, Mayana, akaisuke, Takesuchi,

Minezeki ana Yoneya, still at iiiangwan. Lance Cor,oral Suzuki, at present

in Hankow, Lance Corporals Jins and Ctsuki, returued t» Japan. Lance

Corporal Konatsu, sick in the hospital,

This stateiient cunsists of Stveun paces. Further deyonent sayeth not,

[s/ C. L. DOS REMEDIOS

206 Enbaniziant 31dz=, l

410 ¥orth Soochow Rd,

7 Sworn and subscriberd tn before ne this 19ih day of September 1945,

' m
_/s/ JASCN S. BAILEY :
Cayt, AUS, j
o
— o B 7 . Lsst. Theater Judgze Advocate o
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SUZUKT  KIUICHI ¥
‘calied as a vitness on behalf of the prosecution, was examined anu test- %
ified as follows: 'g%f

L: ..

11/ 6 m 23 Mar Af.

PROSECUTOR: (reading "It w.s the nractice of the Javanese at
Kiangwan to take prisoners condemned to death to a Chinese crematory
in Kiangwan, opposite the race course, and"--

DEFENSE: Is thRat word "ecremetory" or "cemeter:"?

PROSECUTOR: (after conferring and couparing copies of document)
Apparently the copy furaished defense says '"cemetery", The original, how-
ever, says ''crematory",

. DEFENoE: Defendant moves to strikc the last statement for the reason
it is based on mere belief wnd not upon any evidence or any knowledge of
what the witness had particular tnowied; e of, &s to vhat imight neve hap-
pened in Tokyo. Vie submit that it should not be adnittec, and tnat such
remarks should not be submitted to the coimurission.

COLONEL MC REYNOLDS: V/ill ycu read back the statement obgected to?

PROSECUTOR: "It is my beliesf thet the sentence of death on the
fliers had been set and approved by military ncadyuarters in Tok o be-
cause the fliers had originally bsen taken to Tokyo for quest.ioning
in April and returned to Shanshai in June," Deifense did not object to
the admissibility of the document when it was offered.

DEFLNSE: VWe merely stated we had no objecticn to the admissibiiity
of the statement. However, we do object to this last stateizent which the
prosecution has Jjust re-read,

COLONEL HC REYNOLDS: Objection over-ruled, Proceed,

PROSECUTI.N: (after completing the reading of Prosecuticn's Trans-
cript Exhibit No. 26.) liay it plecase the Cuumission, due Lo the fact
that this witness was suddenly talien sizk and we ncd counted on having
him as a personal vitness, we liav: had to put it in the rescord and we
therefore have not had a translaticn of his statement mnde., If it is
satisfactory with thke Commission ard cefense counzel, we would like to
turn this statement over to the interpreters to prepare a traislated
statement over the weck-end, which they can use iu court.-

\Whereupon both defense counsel and the Comnicsica nodced their
heads in assent,)

PROSECUTCR: The prosecution presents as its next witness, Sergeant ‘
Suzuki. Prior to affirming the viitness, the prosecution would like Lo ask -
two or three preliainary questions,

\

.

(Sgt Morozuui, interpreting.
2

DIRECT FXALIWATICUN

o

Q (By ifaj Dwyer) Sergeant, do you have & religion? oA
ﬂ I dO- i
Q what is it? et
A

Buddhism, Shinto sect,
198
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Do you know what is truth and whet is untruth?
I do,

In speaking before this Comniss:ion Wil you be bound by ;ocur con-
science and your religion to tell the truth and nothing but the
truth?

I do,

(Vhereupon the witness received the oath of affirmution,)
State your nams, grade and prescrt orgenization and station,
Kduichi Suzuki. teve.ant biajox, Jase! fect

Area Army Jail, [a 1Kew, China.

vhere were you stationed 1. Augnust 39.%9
13th Army, Shanghai Prison.

“What were your duties?
Guard, '

Do you know Captain Wal:o?
I do,

Did you know him in August 19427
1 aid;

What were his duties?
He was legal officer.

Was he in the 13th Army Headquarters at that timc?
Yes,

Sergeant, did you ever rcceive fron Captain Tatsuta soi¢ blank shects
of paper signed by the Doolittle fliers?

INTERPRETZR: Blank shcets signed or to be signud?
PROSECUTOR: I withdrayw the question, That is poorly phrased,

Sergeant, did Captain Tatauta ever hand Jou some blank shcets of
paper on which were the names of thc pDoolittle fliers?

INTERPRETER: I don't know how to cxplain blank shcets if there was

& neme writtcn on, (Captain Hahm and other interprcters then assisted
in the translation and the interpreter on duty put the quéstion to the

witness,)

A He did,.

Q then did that happen?

A I am not sure of thc exact date but I think it was about two or

- » B A

three days prior to the exccution.

#as that in the prison grounds that he handed them to you?
Yes,

what did Captain Tatsuta say to'you at the time?
He told me to bring it to the Judicizl officcr,--legal ofiicer,
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How many of the Doeclittlc flisiec lad signed those papers, do you
know?

I .don't know how many signad *he paper. However, there were two or
three sheets of paper signed in pencil,

Was the signing in Euglish?
Yes.,

Was there anything elsc on the paper besides the signatures?
Because it was in Eqglish I couldn't read it, I do not know,

Were the rost oi th: shects blanxk|
Yes.,

Where did you takc these sheets of paper?
I went to the == I tuok them to Lhe lLegel cection office.

Who was in the office?
Legal Officer weko and Hata and another officcr,

Were they all present when you turncd over the papers?
YGSI '

Which one did you hand them to?
As I have said before, I am not ccrtain to whom I handed these

sheets of puper. It is either Wako or Hata.

PROSLCUTOR: You may cross-cxaminc,
CROSS EXAMINATION

(By Mr., Kumashiro) At the time of the exccution of the fliers were
you a guard in the Kiangwan prison?
I was a guard there.

I ask you whether you werc & civil officer or a military personnel?
Civilian,

Do you remember what was the rank of Captain -- of Tetsuta at the
time of the execution?
He was Army Chief of Guards,

Is that rank of Tatsuta, Army personnel rank or rank of civil per-
sonnel?
Civilian status,

Was the prison where you were at the time of the execution under
the control of the 13th Army?
Yes,

Are you sure of that?
1 am,

Where was the Headquarters of the Prison of the Expeditionary Army
in China?

INTERPRETER: The witness is making a qualifying statement to his

previous answer. He is adding to the previous answer.

A

Actually this prison is a Shanghai Branch of the China Expeditionary
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Forces Prison in Nanking and it wes under the Command of the 13th
Army .

DEFENSE: I withdraw my qucstion -- last question,

Q) Wthat do you mean by the Co.ccand of the 13th Army?

i Actually it was attachcd to the China Expoditionery Forces Prison
in Nanking. However, from the standpoint of duty and work it re-
ceived instructions from the Legal Section, l3th Arngy.

COLONEL MURPHY: Did the Commander of the 13tn jrmy supervise the
transfer of the personrel?

A Not supervise.

Q (By Mr., Kumasniro) lias thc personncl transfor of the prison where
you were, teking place by the instruction of the Co.mander of the
13th Army?

A Yes,

G Under whose supervision were you at the time of t™. exccution?

A We werc under the supervision of Tatsuta, Chief of the Brench,
and carried on our duties accordingly.

Q Do you know that Tatsuta was undcr the control of the head office
in Nanking?

A I do.

Q On the paper what you received from the flicrs werc therc any other

words written exccpt the signatures?

PROSECUTCR: lie objeet to that question upon the grounds that the
witness has already testificd that therc weren't any other words, To
suggest that there werc any, I think is impropcr,

DEFENCE: (It Col Bodine) The witness did not testify that therc
wercn't any other words. He testificd hc couldn't read cnglish and therc-
fore could not understand.

PROSZCUTOR: May it please tne Commission, as I recall this question
is, he said, did he receive them from the fliers. Is thet correct? The
record shows he received them from Tatsuta,

COLONEL MC REYNOLDS: ILet the witness answer the question and rcserve

your objection,

INTERPRETER: The witness is not clear end I am not able to unaer-
stand if he is saying there were or there weren't.

COLOKEL MC REYNOLDS: Have the witness repeat his answer,

A (after considerable discussion between witness and interpreter) There

Werec.
COLONEL MC REYNOLDS: The objection by thec prosecution is sustained,
PROSECUTOR: Ve move to strike the answer from the record.

COLONEL MC REYNOLDS: The question and answer will be stricken from
the record,
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What was written on the bunch of pieces of papers thot you reecived
frow Tatsuta?
It was in knglish so I could not rcad it.

At the time of the execution where werc y ou?y
I was in the officc.

Lt the time of the eiocution did you sce amy -~ did vou scc the
writ of execution in the cofiice?
I have.

Do you remember tha contecnts of ite

It read "Ordcr of Txecution" there wes a date and the name of the
legal officer. The name of the presceuting attorney 1 think was
Ito and it was addresscd to Ooka Tekijiro of the China Expedition-
ary Forces Prison,

Do you remember at that timc when you were in the office that one
officer came in the office to spcak with Tatsuta?

First Licutcnant Tajima came into the officc on the day of the ex-
ecution,

Could you hear the conversation between Tajimn and Tatsuta?
I dj.d not hEﬂr iti

Do you know what was the duty at that tiue of Tajima?
He was the Chicf of the Guards of the 13th [rmy.

Do you know that fire squad was instructcd to assist the exccution
of the fliers?

PROSECUTOR: That question may be objectivncble. 3,ill the reporter

rcad it, please,

REPORTER; (reading) "Do you kncw that fire squad was instructed to

assist the execution of the flicrs?on

A

il

e =P B

R

PROSECUTOR: No obJjection,

I do know I havc seen documcnts on it,

Froum whom was that documcnt issued?

The document was issued by the 13th irmy and was datcd the morning
of the day of cxecution, The genceral outline and gonercl contents
of thit document that one officer and onc non-comaissioned ofi'icer
and fifteen enlisted men be dispatched to the prisong that for
detailed instructions to consult Tatsutcz,

Do you remember to whom was that order addresscd?
It was a 13th /rmy Order and it did not indicatc any spceific
addresscc.,

Do you know to whom was that order handcd over?

I was in the office when it was brought from the Supervision Depart-
ment. I thcn handed it to Chief of Guard lMyada,

DETENSE: May we ask for a short recess at this time,

COLONEL MC KREYNOLDS: The Commisslon recesses for fifteen minutes,

until lO: 14.5-
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(Whereupon, at 10:30 the commission recessed for fiftecn minutes,
until 1045 hours, at which time the keabers of the Co.mission, the
accused, counsel for prosecution and defensc, tho interpreting staff
and official reporter resumcd their seats in the court room, and the
witness resumed his place on the witness stand,)

PROSECUTOR: Remind the witncess that he is still under oath,

Suzuki Kiuichi resumcd the stand after adjournment aznd was reminded
he was still undcr oath. Cross-examination woas continucd with Lir,
Kumashiro interrogaling and sergeant llorozumi interprcting,

Q When you reccived the picces of paper from Tetsute did he explain

vwhat the pepurs werc?
I Hc told me that it was the last tustoment.

Q Do you know the namcs of the firec squad end its Commanding Officer?

INTERPRETER: Do you nean to say the nancs of the members of the
firing squad?

DLFuNSE: Yes,
I I do.

= that were they?
A First Liocutcnant Tajima, Commanding Officer, 13th Army sentrics,

REDIRECT EX. iuINATICON
Q (By Maj Dwyer) Did you tekc the blank shects of poper with the

Doolittle fliers! signaturcs to Coptain llako ana ifajor lata?
I Yes,

0 And tnen do you meen to tell the Commission you took sanother sct
of papcrs at another tiine to Licutenant Tajima?

J‘Ir N Oe

) Did you take a sccond group of papers to la_or Hata ond Captain
Wako?

A NoO.

Q Wlere there six papcrs?

A I am not surc, Therc was morc than threc shcets. .round four or five,

Q Isn't it a fect thet you took six papers and each of the tarce

fliers had signed two of them?
i Because I did not count the number of shuets, 1 do not recmember how
many shcets there werc., I think that therc were four or five,

RECROSS EX/MINLTION

<D

(By Mr. Kumashiro) Did you take those papcrs which you had rc-
ceived from Tatsuta to Weko or to Hata, airectly, pcrsonally?
0 Yes,

W Did you personally hand that papers to wzko?
i I do not rememoer to whom I gave those papcrs.
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Q Werc you instructed from Tatsuta to hand thesc papcrs to wako?
L I was told to bring it to tiic Legal Officcr.

Q /t that tinc where was Wwalio? Wherc WLS V. 8K0%
A In his office.

Q In his office where you werce?

i In the legal officc.

Q ire you sure that you handed over 1o l.ako that picces ol paper?
I I do not clearly remember. s I have stated boferc, I cannot rc-

member wncther I h-onded thien over to lieko or to Hata,

PROSECUTOR: Dous the Commission wilsh to intcrrogate this witness?
COLONEL MC REYNOLDS: There appear to bc no questions,

PROSECUTOR: May the witness bc excused?

COLONEL MC REYNOLDS: The witness is cxcused,

(Vhercupon the witness withdrew from the witness stand ana lcft the
court room,)

PROSECUTOR: The prosccutdon calls as its noxt wutness, Licutcnent
icbber, .

(Captain Hahm, interpreting.)
BERT WALL/CE WEB3:R

called s & witness on behalf of the Frosecution, being first duly sworn
was cxamincd and tospificd s follows:

DIRFCT EX/MIN.TLCN

Q (By Ma] Dwyer) Lieutenant, plcase state your full name, grade,
organization and station.

I Bert lLiallace liebber, Second Licutenant, Infentry, end 1 am attached
to the incrican Grezves Registration Scrvice, Chlnn Theatcr,

Q Licutenant Webbcr, as part of your dutics do you «sork in the¢ gen-
eral matter of graves registrations and graves control?
i 1. 00

Q Licutcnant, bccause we arc deal.ng with interprctation, 1 will ask
the question and plcase withhold jyour answer until he has inter-
preted the question in Japancse, and after you give your answer I
will hold the next question until hc has interpretcd your answer.
You have come to this court at the request of the prosecution?

i Yes,

Q Licutenant, have you consulted the rcecords of your officc with
respect to Licutenant Decan d. Hallmark?
I\ Yes sir, I have.

Q Do you have that rocord with you?
Is Yes sir.
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Will you consult it, please, and state to the Commiszsion briefly
what it shows with respect to tle body of Lieuteaanl Dean i Hell-
mark.

It shows he was cremated, sir, end tie ashes wers taleu to the

International Funeral Service.

Does this record show the dote of dsath?
Yes sir, it doec.

Whnﬁ date?
15th of October 1942.

Does this record show the present location of the ashes of Dean L.
Hallmark?
Yes sir, it does.

VWhere are they located?
They are located at the Tnternational Funeral Directory . 1 cannot
pronounce the address but it is written in the record.

In Shanghai?
Yes, it 1is.,

Does your record show another name for Decan L. Halimark, also?
Yes sir, it does.

vhat is that name?
Jo Smith, initial only.

Do you have a similar record for Lieutenaut william Glover Farrow,
F-A-R-R~0-W?
1 have,

State briefly to the cumission the similar data with respect to

Lieutenant Farrow. -

The date of death of Iieutenant Farrow 1is also 15 Cctober 1942,

It also shows he was crematea and the ashes are at the lnternation-
al Funeral Service, Shanghail,

Does that record also show anotl.er naue for Lieutcnant Farrow?
Yes, it does.

vhat is the namc?
He . Gande.,

G=A-N-D-L?
Yes sir.

Do you have & similar record for Sergeant Harold A. Spatz?
Yes sir,

Please state to the Conaission the similar data with respect to

Sergeant Spatz. , -

The record also shows that the date ol death was the 1l5th of Qcto-
ber, 1942. It also shows that he was cremated and the ashes are

at the International I‘uneral Directors, There is also an alias for

him,

What is that? |
B. L. Brister. B-R-I-S-T-E-I.
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Do you have a record fram your office with respect to Lieutenant

Robert J. Meder?
Yes sir, I do,

Please state to the Coiuission the data from that record.
The date of death for this officer was Deceuber 1, 1943, and the
body was cremated and the ashes are at the winternational Funeral

Directors, Shanghai.

Does that record of Lieutenant Meder's show the place of death?
Yes sir, it does.

Vlhere?
Nanking Prison.

Lieutenant, these records from which you have testified are records
kept by the Graves Registration Bureau, United States Forces, China

Theater?
Yes sir, they are.

They are official records?
Yes sir.

PROSECUTOR: You may cross—examine,
CROSS EXAMINATICN

(By Capt Fellows) Lieutenant 'iebber, are you the of ficial custodian
of these records?
No sir, I am not.

tho is the official custodian of these recoras?
I am afraid, sir, I cannot answer who would be the of ficial custod-

ian unless it would be the head of the office.

Do you know how the information relating to the time and facts of
death of Lieutenant Hallmark was gathered?
No sir, I don't.

Do you know how the information relating to the cremating of the
body of Lieutenant Hallmark was gathered?
No sir, I don't.

Do you know how the information relating to the place where the
ashes might be found was gathered?

PROSECUTOR: If the Commission, please, the prosecution woula like

to object to this line of questioning. The witness has only testified
that these are official documents and what the documents say. He is not

questioned as to the correctness or authenticity of the documents and
this line of questioning is only taking up the time of the Commission
and can serve no useful purpose.

DEFENSE: If the facts on the documents are not worthy of evidence,

it should not be put in. If it is worthy of evidence, the defense
should be entitled to inquire into the background of the truth of these
documents.,

COLONEL MC REYNOLDS: ObJjection sustalned,

DEFENSE: No further questions.
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PROSECUTOR: Does the Commission wish to interrogate the witness?

4A% <

COLONEL MC REYNOLDS: There appearing to be no cuestions by the
Commission, the witness is excused,

(vhereupon the witncss withdrew from the witness stand and resumed
a seat in the court room,)

PROSECUTOR: We will rall Mr. Scott as our next witness,
e (Capt Hahm interpreting)
e 0B 00TT

called as a witness on behalf of the Prosecution, being first duly sworn,
was examined and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXALLLIAT 10N

%) (By Maj Dwyer) Please state your name and present address.
As R. 0. Scott, 207 Tai Chou Road.,

Q How long have you lived in Shanghai, lir., Scott? .
A About twenty years.

Wwhat is vour business?

,...
-

. "4 g ! '*. i * 3 L . : . y
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A President, International Funeral. Directors.
Q ind how long have you been in that business, sir?
A As President since 1933, |
Q iir. Scott, you have come here as a witness at the request of the
prosecution?
A I have,
() State to the Commission vhether the records in your funeral parlors
indicate enything with respect to Dean E, Hallmark, william G.
Farrow, Harold A. Spatz. o
A Yes, they do. That is, those names were recorded in my office .
after the liberation,
Q ire they the names of persons whose ashes are in your funeral
parlors?
A Yes, they are said to be,
Q Do those ashes have on their urns, names other than Hallmark,
Farrow and Spatz?
A Yes, they have,
Q State the other names for each of those three,
A One is J. Smith; one is LK, L. Brister and one 1s H.E.Ganae.
Q State to the Coumissicn vhich of those other names applies to each
of those men,
A I am sorry, I cannot tell you without referring to other records.
Q Vhen did the International Funeral Parlors first have anything to
do with these ashes?
A The ashes were received b, the lnternational Funeral Directors on

the 14th of liovember, 1942,
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For each o1 the three?
They arrived at thc sane tliue,

and those ashes camc undor the names of Smith, Brister enu Gande?
Yes sir.

tvhere did they comc from?
Lscecording to my record they came froa the Japancse Internment Camp.

The bodies alrsacy had becn cremated, is that correct?
Yes sir.

State to the Commission vhether or not at a later time, after host-
ilities, something happened with respect to thce names on those urns,
Shortly after the cessation of hostilitics, soie vapanese camc to
my office and looked over the urns of prisoners of war that we had
there.

Then what happened?
i fow davs later they came back again and left instructicns recgard=

ing these three cases of Smith, Gande and Irister, tc change the
names of those three cases.

terc they Japancse military?
They were in uniform,

Do you know tiielr namcs?
No.

Pursuant to their instructions to what names did you changc the

urns?
I can't tell you without refurring to the urns,

17411 you open up the basket, please and remove the urnsy You may
remain standing right by the urns. Now, I ask you, can you tell
the Commission now, by looking at thesc urns, to vhat namcs the
urns were changed?

(after removing urns from basket end lining them up on bench in
front of Commission) Yes.,

Please do soO.
Dean E., Haellmark from Smith; to --

From Smith to Hallmark?
YGS .

11l right, and the next one?%
Gande to Farrow,

ind the next one?
Bristcr to Spatz.

Have these ashes rcmaincd in your control at all timcs since they
werc first reccived by you?

They were in control of the Intcrnetional Funcral Directors but I
was not dircctly in charge, for two and a half ycars while I was
in camp, in internment,

But they werc at all times in control of the International Funeral

Parlors?
Yes sire.
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Q Did there come o tiue vhen the ashes of lLicutcnant Meder were @lso
Laiwagnu to the Intcrnational Funcral Parlor?

I3 Yes sir,

0 Do you have your rccords iith you with respcct to Meder?

IR I have no rcecords with me with respect to ieder.

Q State to the Commission vhat you inow about that,

i Thcy were brought to the Funcral Parlors some time after the liber-
ation.,

Q iw/ho brought them there?

1A I do not rcmembecr,

Arc these ashes held by ycu subject to tha control of the Graves
Registration Bureau of thc Unitcd States Forces, China Theater?
I‘L YGS Sir-

)

Q@ Do you have the urn of ashes which, according to thesc rccords and
yours, are the ashces of Licutenant Robert J. umeder?
A Yes sir.

0 You have them here in tnc court room?
i Yes sir (removing them froa the basket and plucing them beside the

other three before the Comaissions,)

(nd these are also presently undcr your control subject to the
regulations of the Graves Registration Burceu?
i Yes sir.

—
L S [
e S i

PROLECUTOR: May it please the Commission, prior to offering the
ashes 1n evidence, I would like to meks a statciacnt on bchalf of the
exhibit that the repatrietion law which controls the rcturn of bodies
and ashes of those who have died in foreign thLeaters hes not yet becen
enacted and passed b, the Congress of the United Statcs and until it
is, no bodies will be exthumced nor will ashes be rcturned to thce United
States until the law is cnacted in finsl fora and the United States
Lrmy will keep control of these ashes «nd bouies until tic lew is
enacted and in no event will a disposition be madec witil the next-of-
kin arc told as to the disposition. Therefore, these ashes uust re-
main under the control of the Greves Registration Burcau and in the
International Funeral Perlor. iith thet statement we would of fer these
in evidence, subject to being withdrawn subscgucnt to their being re-
celved and returned to tihc International Funcral Perlor and & reference
of thelr withdraval and rcceipt substituted in the record for tlie ashcs
themselves, 1ith thet stateucnt underlying the offer, the prosccution
now offers in cvidence as Exhibit "C", thc ashes of Licutenant Dean E.
Hallmark, ILieutcnant lyilliam Glover Farrow, Cergeznt Herold 4. Spatz
end Lieutenant Robert J. iicder.

~ DEFENSE: The defonsc requests thie Comnission to closc the session
without ruling on the Prosecution's offcr. Wwe have no cuestions of
the witness.
PROSECUTCH: Does thc Comaission have any questions?

COLONEL iC RUYNOLD:: Therc appearing to be none, thc witness is
excused,

(*.hereupon the witncss withdrew from the witnees stand and resumed
2 scat in the court room,)
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COLONEL MC REYNULDS: The Court will be closed.,

(Whereupon, at 1145 hours, the public withdrew from the court room
and the court was iu closed session, at which time defense objected to
the receipt of Prosecution's Iixhibit "C" and crgued his reasons therefor.,)

COLONEL MC REYNOLDSs The Commission will receive Prosecutionts
Exhibit "C" in evidence anil over-rules the derense objection, Let the
record show the offer in evidence and its receipt into evidence,

(Prosecution!s lixhibit nC" received
in evidence,)

PROSECUTOR: If the Commission, please, with the appreval of the
Commission, let the record also show that the original exhibits shall
be withdrawn and a reference in the record to their receipt in evidence
be substituted for the ashes themselves., Is that satisfactory to the

Comaission?

COLONEL MC REYNOLD.: That is satisfactory with the Commission,

PROSECUTOR: May it please the Commission, perhaps we should open
the court to the jublic, It is alter twelve, and then if it is agree-
able to the Commission, the court will adjourn.

COLONEL MC KEYNCLL!: The Court is open (1200 hours).

(Whereupon the doors to the court room were opened and the public
given an opportunity to return to their secats,)

PROSECUTOR: It is stipulated and agreed by prosecution and defense
counsel that Prosecution's Ixhiibit "C" is described as four wooden boxes
each approximately nine inches long, nine inches wide and twelve inches
deep and each draped with an fmerican flag. Lacl. urn or box was marked
with the name of the person whose ashes were contained therein, as
described in the evidence,

COLONEL MC REYNOLDS: The Commission will adjourn until kionday morn-
ing, 25 March, at 9:00 ot'clock,

(Vihereupon, at 1203 hours, 23 March 1946, the Commission adjourned
to reconvene at 0900 hours, 25 iMarch 1946,)




